REPUBLIC
M1 SS O UR I AGENDA

Planning and Zoning Meeting
Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd
September 11, 2023 at 6:00 PM

Call Meeting to Order
Approve Agenda
Approve Minutes

1. Draft Minutes 8/14/23. Possible Vote to Approve Minutes from Previous Planning and Zoning
Commission Meeting held August 14, 2023.

Meeting Procedures
Public Hearings

2. SU 23-002. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application for a
Special Use Permit by Melanie Fergason for a Veterinary Facility or similar establishment at 542,
546, 550, and 554 East Harrison Street.

|

REZN 23-006. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application to
Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Fifteen (15) Acres, Located at 1230 South State
Highway MM from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2).

|

PDD 23-003. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application to
Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Forty (40) Acres, Located Northwest of the
Intersection of West Farm Road 170 and South Farm Road 101 From the Planned Development
District (PDD) to Boyce Mixed-Use Planned Development District (PDD)

o

PDD 23-004. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application to
Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Seventeen Point One Nine (17.19) Acres,
Located 3020 N York Ave From Agricultural (AG) to 6-Point Junction Planned Development
District (PDD)

6. ORD 23-007. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of Amendments to
Chapter 410 Subdivision Regulations.

Other Business
Citizen Participation
BUILDS Department Update

Adjournment

Individuals addressing the Board are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and
address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to
attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 417-732-3101 at least three days prior to
the scheduled meeting. All meetings are tape recorded for public viewing.




Iltem 1.

REPUBLI
M 1SS OURI MINUTES
Planning and Zoning Meeting

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd
August 14, 2023 at 6:00 PM

Call Meeting to Order

PRESENT

Chairman Ransom Ellis
Commissioner Darran Campbell
Commissioner Brian Doubrava
Commissioner Jeff Hays
Commissioner Cynthia Hyder
Commissioner Mike Mann

ABSENT
Commissioner John Alexander
Council Liaison Garry Wilson

Approve Agenda

Motion made by Commissioner Doubrava, Seconded by Commissioner Campbell.
Voting Yea: Chairman Ellis, Commissioner Campbell, Commissioner Doubrava, Commissioner Hays,
Commissioner Hyder, Commissioner Mann

Approve Minutes

1. Possible vote to approve the minutes from the July 10, 2023 Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting.

Motion made by Commissioner Doubrava, Seconded by Commissioner Campbell.
Voting Yea: Chairman Ellis, Commissioner Campbell, Commissioner Doubrava, Commissioner
Hays, Commissioner Hyder, Commissioner Mann

Meeting Procedures
Public Hearings

2. SU 23-001. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application for a
Special Use Permit by Gator State Storage FP LLC for a Boat, Vehicle, or Self-Storage Facility at
111 and 107 West Broad Street.

Motion made by Commissioner Hyder, Seconded by Commissioner Doubrava.
Voting Yea: Chairman Ellis, Commissioner Campbell, Commissioner Doubrava, Commissioner
Hays, Commissioner Hyder, Commissioner Mann

M1 S S O URI

REPUBL'C Planning and Zoning Meeting, August 14, 2023 5




Speakers
Applicant: Dave Erdman (on behalf)

3. REZN 23-005. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of An Application
to Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Ten Point Four Four (10.44) Acres, Located
at 688 South Kansas Avenue from Agricultural (AG) and Medium-Density Single-Family (R1-M) to
Two-Family Residential (R-2).

Motion made by Commissioner Campbell, Seconded by Commissioner Mann.
Voting Yea: Chairman Ellis, Commissioner Campbell, Commissioner Hyder, Commissioner Mann
Voting Nay: Commissioner Doubrava, Commissioner Hays

Speakers

Applicant: Shawn Barry (on behalf)

Opposition: Colby Hall, Steven Greenhow, Ed Smith, Sandra Youngblood, Caroline Guess, Betty
North

4. PDD 23-002. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of an Application to
Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Two Hundred and Three Point Three Nine
(203.39) Acres, Located at 1462 South State Highway MM from Agricultural (AG) to Garrett Farm
Planned Development District (PDD).

Motion made by Commissioner Hyder, Seconded by Commissioner Campbell.
Voting Yea: Chairman Ellis, Commissioner Campbell, Commissioner Doubrava, Commissioner
Hays, Commissioner Hyder, Commissioner Mann

Speakers
Applicant: Jared Rasmussen (on behalf)
No position: Jim Jenkins

Other Business

Citizen Participation

BUILDS Department Update

Adjournment

Motion made by Commissioner Doubrava, Seconded by Commissioner Mann.
Voting Yea: Chairman Ellis, Commissioner Campbell, Commissioner Doubrava, Commissioner Hays,
Commissioner Hyder, Commissioner Mann

Chris Tabor, Principal Planner Ransom Ellis, Chairman

M1 S S O URI

3|Page
@ REPUBLIC Planning and Zoning Meeting, August 14, 2023

Iltem 1.




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC SAKIGE 4

S S O U R

Item 2.

Project/Issue Name: SU 23-002. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of
An Application for a Special Use Permit to Melanie Fergason for a Veterinary
facility or similar establishment at 542, 546, 550, and 554 East Harrison Street.

Submitted By: Melanie Fergason
Presented By: Patrick Ruiz, Associate Planner
Date: September 11, 2023

ISSUE IDENTIFICATION

Melanie Fergason has applied for a Special Use Permit to operate a Veterinary facility or similar
establishment on the property located at 542, 546, 550, and 554 East Harrison Street.

DiSCcUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The subject property of this application is comprised of one lot approximately one point seven-four
(1.74) acres of land and is zoned General Commercial (C-2). The lot currently has an existing commercial
building with multiple units. The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow for the
redevelopment and operation of a Veterinary facility that will be comprised of four units of an existing
commercial building. If approved, it would allow the applicant to remodel the four western-most units
of the commercial building into a Veterinary facility.

The property is surrounded by:

e General Commercial (C-2) to the East and West;

e General Commercial (C-2) and Local Commercial (C-1) to the South;

e General Commercial (C-2), Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M), and Light
Industrial (M-1) to the north across E Harrison St.

Applicant’s Special Use Permit Request

The Applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow for the redevelopment and operation of a
Veterinary facility that will be comprised of four units of an existing commercial building. The applicant
is proposing an expansion of an existing business, Republic Animal Hospital, currently located at the
same building in unit 574. This Application, were it to be approved, would allow for a future Commercial
Remodel Building Permit application in line with the proposed narrative plan for redevelopment.

Compatibility with City’s Special Use Ordinance

SU 23-002




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC SAKIGE 4

S S O U R

Item 2.

The City’s Special Use Permit Ordinance, Section 405.670, authorizes, upon approval of the City Council,
uses which are otherwise prohibited by the subject zoning district provided appropriate conditions and
safeguards which may be imposed to protect the public welfare and to conserve and protect the
condition and value of property in the neighborhood. Special Use Permits are required by Section
405.670 for Veterinary Facilities or similar establishments.

In addition, the operator of the site will be required to have a valid business license on file with the City
prior to conducting business.

Municipal Water and Sewer Service: This site is currently served by the City of Republic water and

sanitary sewer services. The approval of a Special Use Permit for a Veterinary Facility or Similar
Establishment would not require new connections to the existing water and sewer service lines.

Duration: This Special Use Permit, if approved, would remain valid until a change in use or in the
configuration of the use occurred. Changes in use or significant reconfiguration would void the Special
Use Permit. Furthermore, the Applicant is required to abide by any additional conditions that may be
placed on the permit at City Council’s request. Design review of the remodel of the existing building
would occur during the review phase of the building permit application process.

Transportation: A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was not required due as no impactful change in trips
generated is anticipated.

Floodplain: The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain).
Sinkholes: The subject parcel does not contain any sinkholes.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff considers the proposed Special Use Permit request for a Veterinary Facility or similar
establishment in a General Commercial (C-2) Zoning District, located at 542, 546, 550, and 554 East
Harrison Street, to be generally consistent with the City’s Special Use Permit Ordinance and able to be
adequately served by the City’s transportation network and the City’s municipal facilities. Based upon

this analysis (performed without the benefit of evidence and testimony of a public hearing), Staff
recommends the approval of this application.

Redevelopment of the subject units on this parcel will require adherence to the City’s adopted Plans
and Ordinances; the next step in the process to redevelop the subject units of the existing building,
upon a favorable Special Use Permit outcome, will be the construction, review, and approval of a
Commercial Remodel Permit.

SU 23-002




(R)RePUH -

Owner/Applicant
HICKS TRUST / Melanie
Fergason

ADDRESS

542, 546, 550, 554 E
Harrison ST

b e » ) % ";‘,,_,v 3 ;;’_ ZONING
""" ~ . . S - REEE C-2 | REQUESTED: N/A

PIN
881720104006

WARD
2

ACREAGE
1.74

N-HAmplon Ave

E-Harris

2 Site Extent m Floodplain

REPUBLIC ANIMAL HOSPITAL outorciy  sinknd®

SU 23-002 | SPECIAL USE PERMIT




harrison

I SPECIAL USE EXTENT

1542 546 550 554 | 558 (562 see| 570 574) 578 582 | 586

534

el

| g-;) .
-

W (RN r l:,\'? 3 B
ki bl [ : W [
o e ik | ! # N X

REPUBLIC ANIMAL HOSPITA

SU 23-002 | SPECIAL USE PERMIT

N-HAmplon Ave

Elm St

17
-
=

(R) Repue =

Owner/Applicant
HICKS TRUST / Melanie

Fergason

ADDRESS
542, 546, 550, 554 E
Harrison ST

ZONING
C-2 | REQUESTED: N/A

PIN
881720104006

WARD
2

ACREAGE
1.74

E-Harris

Site Extent Floodplain

D Out of City Sinkh




Item 2.

Republic Animal Hospital Narrative Plan

There has been an increased need for veterinary care in our area and the larger hospital size
would also allow me to serve more pets and their owners in our local community.

My plan is to relocate and expand Republic Animal Hospital from 574 E Harrison Street to 542-
554 E Harrison Street. Republic Animal Hospital would continue to provide veterinary services
to small animal patients (dogs and cats). The hospital would provide preventative/wellness care
to include vaccines and parasite prevention. The hospital would provide medical and urgent
care for sick or injured animals. Surgery and dentistry would also be performed at the clinic.

Patients would not be routinely left overnight at the hospital and no boarding or grooming
services are planned to be offered.




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC SARRTE

S S O U R

Item 3.

Project/Issue Name: REZN 23-006. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval
of An Application to Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Fifteen
(15) Acres, Located at 1230 S St Hwy MM, from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy
Industrial (M-2).

Submitted By: KDEB Properties LLC
Presented By: Patrick Ruiz, Associate Planner
Date: September 11, 2023

ISSUE IDENTIFICATION

KDEB Properties LLC has applied to change the Zoning Classification of approximately 15 acres of
property located at 1230 S St Hwy MM from Agricultural (AG) to Heavy Industrial (M-2).

DiSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The property subject to this Rezoning Application consists of approximately 15 acres of land located at
1230 S St Hwy MM; the property is currently the site of an occupied residence.

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s
relationship to adopted plans of the City.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of residential and commercial
development through proactive Rezoning of land at appropriate locations. Appropriate locations are
described generally throughout the Plan, with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations
to infrastructure capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.

e Goal: Coordinate infrastructure development through the encouragement of redevelopment and
integration of the former Brookline area.
o Objective: Support the development of an industrial/commercial center where
infrastructure and transportation exist.

The Rezoning of this parcel is consistent with the City’s Adopted Plans.
The subject property fronts St Hwy MM, which operates as an industrial corridor within the city. The

general trend of this area has been a transition from agricultural zoned properties and residential uses
to manufacturing and commercial uses in conjunction with planned infrastructure improvements.

REZN 23-006




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC SARRTE

S S O U R

Item 3.

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses

The subject property is adjacent to Agriculturally (AG) zoned parcels bordering the north, south, and
east property lines. A recently rezoned property to the north is zoned Heavy Industrial (M-2). Across St
Hwy MM is the Republic Industrial subdivision, a preliminary platted Heavy Industrial (M-2) zoned
subdivision consisting of five parcels.

The Heavy Industrial (M-2) Zoning District is intended to support manufacturing and industrial related
uses.

Capacity to Serve Potential Development and Land Use

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:

City Water and Sewer systems have capacity to serve this property if the application is approved.

Actual development of the property will require connecting to municipal water and sewer mains not
currently located near the property. The provision of sewer service to the property will require the
construction of a lift station to serve the basin in which the subject property resides. The precise path
effluent would take to the Wastewater Treatment Facility is dependent on the siting of utilities and
structures but is likely to flow from the site to Brookline North Lift Station, to Brookline South Lift
Station, to Mcelhaney Lift Station and then to the Wastewater Treatment Facility.

The water system, named Lift Stations, and Wastewater Treatment Facility currently have capacity to
serve the intended use.

Transportation:

The City waived the requirement for a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) in relation to this Rezone Application
based on the presence of existing access from the site to St Hwy MM, a primary arterial class road set
for anticipated expansion to 5 lanes in Fall of 2024.

Floodplain: The subject parcel does not contain any areas of Special Flood Hazard Area (Floodplain).

Sinkholes: The subject property does not contain an identified sinkhole.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) to be generally consistent with the
goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, consistent with the trend of development in the
vicinity of the site, compatible with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served by

REZN 23-006

10




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC RARR

M1 S S O U R I

Item 3.

municipal facilities. Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit of evidence and testimony
of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application.

REZN 23-006

11




HWY MM: M-2 REZONING

REZN 23-006 | REZONE

REPUE(>-:
M | S S Ok

Owner
KDEB PROPERTIES LLC

ADDRESS
1230 S State Hwy
MM

ZONING
AG | REQUESTED: M-2

PIN
881426200016

WARD
2

ACREAGE




(R) Repue =

Owner
KDEB PROPERTIES LLC

ADDRESS
1230 S State Hwy
MM

ZONING
AG | REQUESTED: M-2

PIN
881426200016

WARD
2

ACREAGE

HWY MM: M-2 REZONING owacy o]

REZN 23-006 | REZONE




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC L

S S O U R

Item 4.

Project/Issue Name: PDD 23-003. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of
an Application to Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Forty (40)
Acres, Located Northwest of the Intersection of West Farm Road 170 and
South Farm Road 101 From the Planned Development District (PDD) to Boyce
Mixed-Use Planned Development District (PDD)

Submitted By: Jeffrey Boyce Enterprises, LLC
Presented By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner, BUILDS Department
Date: September 11, 2023

ISSUE IDENTIFICATION

Jeffrey Boyce Enterprises, LLC applied to change the Zoning Classification of approximately forty (40)
acres of property located northwest of the intersection of West Farm Road 170 and South Farm Road
101 from Planned Development District (PDD) to Boyce Mixed-Use Planned Development District (PDD).

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The property subject to this Rezoning Application is comprised of approximately 40 acres of land located
Northwest of the intersection of West Farm Road 170 and South Farm Road 101. The property is
currently unimproved agricultural property containing no structures.

Applicant’s Proposal

The Applicant is proposing the Rezoning of this property to a Planned Development District (PDD) to
allow for a mixed-use development consisting of 7 General Commercial (C-2) Lots, 1 Multi-Family
Residential (R-3) Lots, and 2 Regional Detention Basin Lots. The Development Plan also contains new
water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater systems to support the development and a required Collector
class road connecting US Hwy 60 with West Republic Road.

Design Elements of Development Plan
Commercial Use (Lots 1 — 6 and Lot 8) — 22.88 Acres

Lot 1—-1.68 Acres
Lot 2 —1.94 Acres
Lot 3 —4.35 Acres

PDD 23-003

14




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC L

S S O U R

Item 4.

Lot 4 —4.40 Acres
Lot 5—3.99 Acres
Lot 6 —2.58 Acres
Lot 8 —3.94 Acres

All Commercial Lots comply with the regulations and restrictions for the General Commercial (C-2)
Zoning District, including but not limited to:

e Permitted Uses
e Setbacks
e Landscaping/Buffering

Additionally, Lot 8 will have a 25’ setback from the southern property line to provide additional distance
between adjacent residential use lots and the commercial occupant.

Multi-Family Use (Lot 9) — 9.00 Acres
Lot 9 —9.00 Acres
Lot 9 will comply with the following regulations and restrictions:

e Permitted Uses in compliance with Multi-Family (R-3) Zoning District
e Setbacks in compliance with Multi-Family (R-3) Zoning District
o 50’ Setback along west property line to provide additional distance between adjacent
residential use lots and the multi-family property
e Maximum Density of 23 Dwelling Units (DU) per Acre; 207 total DU
e Parking for Lot 9 will be compliance with the City’s Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements
with the following exception: Parking to be calculated at 1.64 spaces per unit.
o Typical Multi-Family Residential parking requirement is 2 spaces per unit.

Regional Detention (Lot 7 and Lot 10) — 3.17 Acres

e Regional Detention and Water Quality Basin
o Lot7-serveslotl, Lot 2, Lot 3, Lot 4 (western half), Lot 7, and Lot 8
o Lot 10 —serves Lot 4 (eastern half), Lot 5, Lot 6, Lot 9, and Lot 10

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s
relationship to adopted plans of the City.

PDD 23-003

15




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC L

S S O U R

Item 4.

Consistency with the Planned Development District (PDD) Ordinance

The purpose of the Planned Development Regulations is to allow for mixed-use, unconventional, or
innovative arrangements of land and public facilities, which would be difficult to develop under the
conventional land use and development regulations of the City.

Planned Unit Developments must demonstrate substantial congruence with each of the following
conditions to be considered eligible for approval:

e The proposed Development Plan shall involve a mixture or variation of land uses or densities.

e The Boyce Mixed-Use Subdivision is a mixed-use development consisting of commercial
and apartment-style multi-family residential dwelling units.

e The proposed Development Plan shall involve the provision of all infrastructure deemed
necessary to adequately serve the potential development.

e The Boyce Mixed-Use Subdivision Infrastructure Plan includes provisions for adequate
supply of municipal water and sewer, a plan for stormwater management, and the
construction and dedication of a Collector Street from US Hwy 60 to Republic Road,
identified on the City’s Transportation Plan and OTO’s Major Thoroughfare Plan.

e The proposed Development Plan shall involve design elements that promote the City of
Republic’s Comprehensive Plan and other adopted plans of the City.

e The City of Republic’s Comprehensive Plan promotes the expansion of commercial and
residential development at locations supported by the City’s water, sanitary sewer, and
transportation networks; the Boyce Mixed-Use Subdivision can be adequately
supported by the City’s existing capacities for water, sewer, and transportation.

e The proposed Development Plan shall involve design elements intended to lessen congestion in
the streets; to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; to promote health and the
general welfare; to provide adequate light and air; to prevent the overcrowding of land; to avoid
undue concentration of population; to preserve features of historical significance; to facilitate
the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks, and other public
improvements.

e The Boyce PDD Development Plan includes construction of a collector class street with
70’ of Right-of-Way connecting US Hwy 60 and Republic Road; the multi-family
residential and commercial lots within the development will utilize the new street, with
no direct connections to US Hwy 60 or Republic Road.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of residential and commercial
development through proactive rezoning of land at appropriate locations. Appropriate locations are

PDD 23-003

16




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC L

S S O U R

Item 4.

described generally throughout the Plan with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations
to infrastructure capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.

The 2021 Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan identifies Land Use Goals and Objectives relating to
development, as follows:

e Goal: Support new development that is well-connected to the existing community.
o Objective: Encourage development that improves and expands upon existing
infrastructure.
Objective: Promote development aligning with current adopted plans of the City.
Objective: Support opportunities to create new destination-style commercial
developments.
e Goal: Recognize potential infill sites as opportunities for development, while mitigating impacts
to adjacent established properties.
o Objective: Support the development of vacant parcels as opportunities for densification
that is harmonious with surrounding development.

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses

The subject site is surrounded by existing Commercially zoned property and large parcel Greene County
Agricultural properties with Single-Family homes.

e North: General Commercial (C-2)
e South:
o Agricultural (AG)
o Greene County Zoned Agricultural (A-1)

o West Republic Road
o MODOT property
e West: General Commercial (C-2)

The land uses permitted in the Applicant’s proposal are considered to be generally compatible with the

surrounding commercial and agricultural zoned properties and uses in proximity to the subject parcel.

Capacity to Serve Potential Development and Land Use

Municipal Water and Sewer Service: This site is currently served by City of Republic sanitary sewer and

water service. The development will require the extension of a new water main from the existing 10-
inch main parallel to the south side of US Hwy 60, along the new Collector Road serving the

PDD 23-003

17




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC L

S S O U R

Item 4.

development, connecting to the existing 12-inch water main on Republic Road to create a looped water
system.

The development will be served by existing gravity sanitary sewer mains running along the northern and
southern property lines, flowing to the McElhaney Lift Station and Shuyler Creek Lift Station before
being pumped back through a series of forced mains to the Wastewater Treatment Facility.

The Water System, Lift Stations, and the Wastewater Treatment Facility have sufficient capacity to serve
the proposed development.

Transportation:

Two Collector Class streets (70 ft Right-of-Way) are depicted in the Development Plan. The first,
referred to herein as Collector 1, runs east-to-west and connects US Hwy 60 with Republic Rd (State
Route M). The second, Collector 2, runs north-to-south and connects to Collector 1, creating a stub-out
to adjacent property at its southern terminus.

The review of this application included an evaluation of the impact of the development on the City’s
transportation network; a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was submitted for the project, which was evaluated
by the City Engineer and our partner agency, MODOT.

The TIS evaluated the transportation impact through trip generation standards provided by the Institute
of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip General Manual; these standards include uses and associated
number of trips generated by these uses. The TIS evaluated these numbers by utilizing the area and
permitted uses within the commercial development areas and the total number of residential dwelling
units in the development. The results from the TIS indicate the following improvements are required for
the development, which will be designed and reviewed during Infrastructure Review and constructed
during the Infrastructure Construction Phase:

e Right-In/Right-Out (RIRO) from the Collector Street onto US Hwy 60

e Right Hand Turn Lane from US Hwy 60 to Collector Street

e Right Hand Turn Lane from Republic Road (State Route M) onto Collector Street
e Left Hand Turn Lane from the Collector to Republic Road (State Route M)

No parcel within the development will have direct access to US Hwy 60 or Republic Road/State Route M;
all lots will have access to the new Collector Street.

Stormwater: The Development Plan contains (2) areas designated for stormwater detention, designed
to control the release of stormwater attributable from the development. The stormwater detention
areas and all open space/common areas will be owned and maintained by the Developer.

PDD 23-003

18




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC L

S S O U R

Item 4.

Floodplain: The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain).

Sinkholes: The subject parcel does contain several identified sinkholes on the northern portion and the
southern portion of the property. A Sinkhole Analysis Report will be submitted, reviewed, and approved
during the Infrastructure Design Process; a (30) foot setback, required by Republic City Code, has been
included on the Development Plan.

All developments must include site design providing for sufficient emergency vehicle access as well as
fire protection facilities (e.g. fire hydrants). Additional elements of code compliance, evaluated at the
time of the development proposal, which will impact the mixed-use development of the subject
property, include, but are not limited to, the City’s Zoning Regulations, adopted Fire Code, and
adopted Building Code. The next steps in the process of development of the subject parcel, upon a
favorable rezoning outcome, will be the development, review, and approval of an Infrastructure Permit
for the construction of utility services and roads.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning to Planned Development District) to
be generally consistent with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, generally consistent
with the trend of development in the vicinity of the site, generally compatible with surrounding land
uses, and able to be adequately served by municipal facilities. Specifically, the proposed development
can be adequately served by the City’s municipal water and sanitary sewer services and the City’s
transportation network.

Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit of evidence and testimony of a public hearing),
Staff recommends the approval of this application.

PDD 23-003

19




Item 4.

20




Item 4.

21




Item 4.

LOT 1

JOSAN PROPERTIES ARKANSAS LLC
ngﬂf 2/]7? f SAPGLEEH BOOK 2020 PAGE 04330820 JEFFREY L MESSENGER ETAL TR \
BOOK 2011 PAGE 30437-11 ~
KEVIN SWINDLE \
BOOK 2007 PAGE 10066-07 :
) @ T TR T T T rer
9 ¢
#é - |
= LOT 4
|
£ | r 4.40 ACRES
| tors3 | 4 1 | |
t = 4.35 ACRES = U
r“ ]
LOT 2 - @&
194ACRES || [ | U U _______
‘W) DIRECT ACCESS TO HWY 60 =] U \\
, LO .
) T 2.58 AGRES \
NO DIRECT ACCESS TO ROUTE M
\
\
\ \ LOT 5 A
. 399 ACRES

NO DIRECT ACCESS TO HWY 60

1.68 ACRES S ~ ‘*—1——4—-7 . )=ﬂ,, .
N S — . /W W w w — W ——w 4 — W —— = —r=

= |

PUBLIC ROAD 70’ ROW- SIDEWALKS BOTH SIDES

BIGHAT 4 LLC
BOOK 2022 PAGE 02144022

—_ _{_\

EWALKS BOTH SIDES
[

=
EZTW—
C

|

|'

|

|

|

LOT 8
3.94 ACRES

—

0
[

PUBLIC ROAD 70' ROW- SID
]

— = ——

| —

B ) \

\
8 | |
| <
N2
| DR
| LAY
BIGHAT 4 LLC DAVID WAYNE VENTRESS ) . O
BOOK 2022 PAGE 02144022 BOOK 2013 PAGE 31592-13 , AL%KESAANNI?A\RAA,\\INFTO?\],\IJ;\]NK%O & WILLIAM H MARCUS
BOOK 2021 PAGE 03157921 , BOOK 2003 PAGE 24658-03
LOT 9

, 9.0 ACRES
, NO DIRECT ACCESS TO ROUTE M

(C1.1) SCALE: 1" =100'

TOTAL PROJECT AREA: 35.05 ACRES

LOT 1:

1.68 ACRES COMMERCIAL USE SITE-DEVELOPMENT TO
COMPLY WITH CITY OF REPUBLIC C-2 GENERAL
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS

LOT 2:

APPROXIMATELY 1.94 ACRES COMMERCIAL USE
SITE-DEVELOPMENT TO COMPLY WITH CITY OF REPUBLIC
C-2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS

LOT 3:

APPROXIMATELY 4.35 ACRES COMMERCIAL USE
SITE-DEVELOPMENT TO COMPLY WITH CITY OF REPUBLIC
C-2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS

LOT 4:

APPROXIMATELY 4.40 ACRES COMMERCIAL USE
SITE-DEVELOPMENT TO COMPLY WITH CITY OF REPUBLIC
C-2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS

[ 1 |OVERALL SITE PLAN 1"=100
™ ™ —
100' 0 50' 100' /

LOT 10

1.70 ACRES
REGIONAL DETENTION

FARM ROAD 101

@' 9.00 ACRES MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL USES. \
SITE-DEVELOPMENT TO COMPLY WITH CITY OF REPUBLIC

3.99 ACRES COMMERCIAL USE SITE-DEVELOPMENT TO -
COMPLY WITH CITY OF REPUBLIC C-2 GENERAL R-3 MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT FARM ROAD 170 il - B
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS REGULATION. '

LOT 6: DENSITY: 207 UNITS / 9.0 ACRES = 23 DU PER ACRE

2.58 ACRES COMMERCIAL USE SITE-DEVELOPMENT TO gﬁ?’g?‘gEsEF}AgszmELABNED'VI'_%TD?,\']TGY OF REPUBLIC

COMPLY WITH CITY OF REPUBLIC C-2 GENERAL -

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS REQUIREMENTS WITH THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTION: SCREENING & BUFFERYARDS: PHASING:

LOT 7: PARKING SPACES WILL BE CALCULATED AT 1.64 SPACES ALONG THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 8:

— PER UNIT. OPAQUE SCREEN, TYPE A PER SECTION 405.810.

1.47 ACRES TO BE DEDICATED AS A REGIONAL DETENTION 25 FOOT BUILDING SETBACK.

AND WATER QUALITY BASIN FOR LOT 1, LOT 2, LOT 3, WEST ALONG THE WEST PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 9:

HALF OF LOT 4, LOT 7, AND LOT 8. OPAQUE SCREEN, TYPE A PER SECTION 405.810.

50 FOOT BUILDING SETBACK.

LOT 8: LOT 10:

— OFF-STREET PARKING AREAS WHICH ABUT THE PUBLIC STREETS:

3.94 ACRES COMMERCIAL USE SITE-DEVELOPMENT TO 1.70 ACRES TO BE DEDICATED AS A REGIONAL DETENTION 6 FEET WIDE CONSISTING OF 1 SHADE TREE PER 50 FEET.

COMPLY WITH CITY OF REPUBLIC C-2 GENERAL AND WATER QUALITY BASIN FOR EAST HALF OF LOT 4, LOT 5,

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS LOT 6, LOT 9, AND LOT 10. INTERIOR PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING:

LANDSCAPE ISLAND WITH 1 SHADE TREE AND 2 SHRUBS FOR

EVERY 20 PARKING SPACES.

ALL INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDING ROADS, SIDEWALKS, UTILITIES,
AND DETENTION AREAS ON LOTS 7 AND 10 SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED DURING A
SINGLE PHASE. LOTS 1, 2, 3, AND 8 TO BE SOLD FOR GENERAL COMMERCIAL USES IN
COMPLIANCE WITH C-2 ZONING. LOTS 4, 5, AND 6 TO BE SOLD FOR
OFFICE/WAREHOUSE USES IN COMPLIANCE WITH C-2 ZONING. LOT 9 TO BE SOLD
FOR MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL USES IN COMPLIANCE WITH R-3 ZONING.

MAINTENANCE OF COMMON AREAS AND DETENTION:

Engineering beyond."

3213 S. West Bypass
Springfield, MO 65807
417.866.2741
wedreown.com

FORMERLY ANDERSON ENGINEERING

BOYCE MIXED USE
SUBDIVISION

US HWY 60 & MO STATE ROUTE M
REPUBLIC, MO 65738

REVISIONS

NO. DESCRIPTION DATE

THE DEVELOPER WILL RETAIN OWNERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR MAINTENANCE
OF ALL COMMON AREAS AND DETENTION.

DRAWING INFORMATION
PROJECT NO: 22SP10310

DRAWN BY: CMF
CHECK BY: JMD

ISSUED FOR: PERMIT
ISSUED DATE: 07/31/2023

20000000y
\\\@Q ﬂaaﬂﬂ
Q

PRELIMINAR

NOT FOR
ONSTRUCTIO
OR PERMIT

00000

<
000000

qg_goooo
i

N¥
W
\\\
2,
7y,

0 N\
7000009900000

ISSUED BY: JARED DAVIS
LICENSE NO: PE No0.2016017614

A licensed Missouri
Engineering Corporation
COA 00062

SHEET TITLE

BOYCE MIXED USE
SUBDIVISION

SHEET NUMBER

1OF 1

22

Plotted on: Aug 28, 2023 - 11:25am

G:\Shared drives\_01_Land Development Eng -older\_Projects\SP1\_2021\21SP10230 Boyce Republic Commercial Subdivision\03-DWG\Sheet\Traffic Sheets(2023-08-22).dwg Layout: 1 of 1 PDD




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC SAKSER

S S O U R

Item 5.

Project/Issue Name: PDD 23-004. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval of
an Application to Change the Zoning Classification of Approximately Eighteen
Point Three-Nine (18.39) Acres, Located at 3020 North York Avenue, from
Agricultural (AG) to 6-Point Junction Planned Development District (PDD)

Submitted By: Ricky Haase
Presented By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner, BUILDS Department
Date: September 11, 2023

ISSUE IDENTIFICATION

Ricky Haase has applied, on behalf of property owner James Wade, to change the Zoning Classification
of approximately 18.39 acres of property located at 3020 North York Avenue from Agricultural (AG) to 6-
Point Junction Planned Development District (PDD).

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The property subject to this Rezoning Application is three separate parcels comprising approximately
18.39 acres of land located at 3020 N York Ave. The property is currently occupied by two residential
structures with the remainder utilized as farmland.

Applicant’s Proposal

The Applicant is proposing the Rezoning of the subject property to 6-Point Junction Planned
Development District (PDD) to allow for an industrial project consisting of a total of 200,000 SF of
warehousing and associated office space to be built over multiple phases of development.

The first phase consists of one building of approximately 50,000 SF, that is restricted to use as
warehouse and office space in accordance with Light Industrial (M-1) zoning. Construction of this phase
will require the completion of stormwater infrastructure. The location of the required detention basin is
depicted on the Development Plan and will be constructed during the first phase. The second phase
consists of 75,000 SF of expansion to the initial building. Further phases allow for two additional
buildings, one measuring 50,000 SF facility and a second of 25,000 SF.

All development will adhere to the specific requirements of the Approved Development Plan; aspects of

the zoning code not specifically included in the Approved Development Plan will require compliance

with code requirements at the date of actual development.

PDD 23-004

23




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC SAKSER

S S O U R

Item 5.

The Applicant’s proposal of warehouse and associated offices has been designed with consideration for
nearby residential uses. The site has frontage along both York Avenue, a local class street where homes
are located, and Sawyer Road, a secondary arterial. The property will not allow direct access to York
Avenue, and instead will connect to Sawyer Road.

The project seeks to minimize impacts on nearby property owners through the inclusion of buffering
along a portion of York (20" wide) and the southern property line (6’ wide). The specific buffer design is
included in the Development Plan and is intended to work in conjunction with the 35’ limit on maximum
building height to screen visual elements from neighbors.

e General Requirements:

o Allows for Warehouse and Office uses as permitted under the Light Industrial (M-1)
Zoning District.

o All lots will comply with the setback, density, and permitted use requirements of the
zoning district most closely associated with the proposed use, unless specifically
addressed in the Approved Development Plan and/or as outlined below:

e PDD Specifics:
o Bulk, Area and Height Requirements

= Setbacks
e Front: 15’
e Rear:15’

e Side (Street): 15’
= Max. Lot Coverage: 90%
=  Max. Building Height: 35’
o Landscaping:
= A buffer of at least 20’ in width along York Ave starting south of the detention
area.
e Buffer consists of 3’ tall berm, 6’ tall wood fence, and a variety of trees
(2 canopy, 2 evergreen, 1 understory per 100 linear feet).
= A buffer of at least 6’ in width along the southern property line.
o Type A buffer as defined by Title 405-X. Opaque up to at least 6’ with
intermittent visual obstructions to 12’.

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s
relationship to adopted plans of the City.

Consistency with the Planned Development District (PDD) Ordinance

PDD 23-004

24




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC SAKSER

S S O U R

Item 5.

The purpose of the Planned Development Regulations is to allow for mixed-use, unconventional, or
innovative arrangements of land and public facilities, which would be difficult to develop under the
conventional land use and development regulations of the City.

Planned Unit Developments must demonstrate substantial congruence with each of the following
conditions in order to be considered eligible for approval:

e The proposed Development Plan shall involve a mixture or variation of land uses or densities.

e 6-Point Junction specifies exact allowable uses and building footprints as a means of
enhancing compatibility with adjacent and nearby properties.

e The proposed Development Plan shall involve the provision of all infrastructure deemed
necessary to adequately serve the potential development.

e All necessary infrastructure has been included in the Development Plan for 6-Point
Junction.

e The proposed Development Plan shall involve design elements that promote the City of
Republic’s Comprehensive Plan and other adopted plans of the City.

o The City of Republic’s Comprehensive and Land Use Plans support the development of
an industrial/commercial center where infrastructure and transportation exist.

e The proposed Development Plan shall involve design elements intended to lessen congestion in
the streets; to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; to promote health and the
general welfare; to provide adequate light and air; to prevent the overcrowding of land; to avoid
undue concentration of population; to preserve features of historical significance; to facilitate
the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewage, schools, parks, and other public
improvements.

e The 6-Point Junction PDD connects to existing utilities, minimizing impacts and negating
added system maintenance.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of residential and commercial
development through proactive rezoning of land at appropriate locations. Appropriate locations are
described generally throughout the Plan with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations
to infrastructure capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.

The 2021 Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan identifies Land Use Goals and Objectives relating to
development, as follows:

e Goal: Support new development that is well-connected to the existing community.

PDD 23-004

25




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC SAKSER

S S O U R

Item 5.

o Objective: Encourage development that improves and expands upon existing
infrastructure.
o Objective: Promote development aligning with current adopted plans of the City.
e Goal: Recognize potential infill sites as opportunities for development, while mitigating impacts
to adjacent established properties.
o Objective: Support the development of vacant parcels as opportunities for densification
that is harmonious with surrounding development.
e Goal: Encourage redevelopment and integration of the former Brookline area.
o Objective: Support the development of an industrial/commercial center where
infrastructure and transportation exist.

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses

The subject site is surrounded by existing agricultural, residential, commercial, and industrial zoned
properties and uses.

Adjacent Property Uses:

e North (across Sawyer Rd): Light Industrial (M-1)
o Spire
e East (across RR): Agricultural (AG)
o Farmland/Future City Park
e South: General Commercial (C-2)
o Trifecta Restoration
e West (across York Ave): Medium-Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) and Agricultural (AG).
o Residential

The trend along Sawyer Road is primarily industrial and commercial of varying intensities.
The trend along York Avenue is primarily residential uses.

The land uses permitted in the Applicant’s proposal are considered to be generally compatible with the
surrounding agricultural, commercial, and industrial zoned properties and uses in proximity to the

subject parcel. Compatibility is aided through strict use enforcement and enhanced screening
requirements of the PDD

Capacity to Serve Potential Development and Land Use

Municipal Water and Sewer Service: This proposed development can be served by existing City of

Republic water and sanitary sewer infrastructure. Both services exist in proximity to the site for
development.

PDD 23-004

26




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC SAKSER

S S O U R

Item 5.

Water service is already available, as an 8” water main is already present on the site and available for
connection.

Sewer service would require connecting to an 8” gravity main across York Ave. Once connected, the
sanitary sewer will flow from the site to the Brookline South Lift Station, McElhaney Lift Station, and
Shuyler Creek Lift Station respectively before being pumped to the Wastewater Treatment Facility.

The Water System, Lift Stations, and the Wastewater Treatment Facility have sufficient capacity to
serve the proposed development at full build-out.

Transportation: A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was required for this Application. Development of the
property will require adherence to the City’s Transportation Plan, Adopted Transportation Map, and
improvements required by the TIS for buildout.

The TIS concludes that the project at full buildout would not cause a significant impact on the study area
roadway network.

The development will not utilize York Avenue for site access. Instead two access points will be made to
Sawyer Road to accommodate circulation.

Stormwater: The Development Plan contains one designated stormwater detention area, designed to
accommodate stormwater generated by the development, to be located southeast of the intersection of
Sawyer Rd and York Ave. The stormwater detention area will be constructed as part of the first phase;
the design of the stormwater area and related stormwater improvements will be reviewed during
project development. The detention area will be maintained by the developer and/or property owners.

Floodplain: The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain) as
depicted by the adopted 2010 FEMA Flood Map. The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood
Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain) as depicted by the unadopted preliminary 2019 FEMA Flood Map.

Sinkholes: The subject parcel does not contain any sinkholes as identified by the Greene County
Assessor’s map.

All developments must include site design providing for sufficient emergency vehicle access as well as
fire protection facilities (e.g. fire hydrants). Additional elements of code compliance, evaluated at the
time of infrastructure design, impacting the development of the subject property, include, but are not
limited to, the City’s Zoning Regulations, adopted Fire Code, and adopted Building Code. The next
steps in the process of development of the subject parcel, upon a favorable rezoning outcome, will be
the development, review, and approval of a New Commercial Building Permit including associated
infrastructure.

PDD 23-004

27




Planning and Zoning Commission
Item 5.

REPUBLIC SAKSER

M1 S S O U R I

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning to Planned Development District) to
be generally consistent with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive and Land Use Plans,
generally consistent with the trend of development in the vicinity of the site, generally compatible
with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served by municipal facilities. Specifically, the
proposed development can be adequately served by the City’s municipal water and sanitary sewer
services and the City’s transportation network. Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit
of evidence and testimony of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application.

PDD 23-004 28




REPUH s
M1 S S O

Owner/Applicant
DAD Commercial, LLC

ADDRESS
3020 N York Ave

ZONING
AG | REQUESTED: 6-POINT
JUNCTION PDD

PIN
881702200095

WARD
2

ACREAGE
18.39

@ 0
‘W-Farm Roag
J aQ

o v

<

. 7&‘)\')(

6-POINT JUNCTION PDD Q:‘:jjjz:y‘ -y

PDD 23-004 | PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT




Item 5.

30




Item 5.

08/21/2023

Requirements and Standards Applicable to
6-Point Junction Planned Development

Prepared by:
Olsson Inc, Ricky Haase, PE

A. INTENT

The intent of the Planned Development District (PDD) is to create a development that serves
as a site for warehouse buildings and their internal office spaces.

As a PDD the Republic Warehouse Development is required to meet four criteria outlined in
405.220 of the Republic Municipal Code.

The first requirement necessitates that the proposed development plan provides a diverse
mixture or variations of land uses and densities. This condition is met through the
placement of strict limitations on allowable building footprints and by specifying the uses to
be permitted on site — mitigating typical nuisances.

The second requirement of these regulations requires that the design involve the provision
of all infrastructure deemed necessary to adequately serve the potential development. The
associated Development Plan lays out the proposed infrastructure improvements.

The third requirement of the Zoning Regulations requires the development to promote the
City’s Comprehensive Plan. This proposed PDD aligns with the City’s Objectives 1B and 1C of
the Land Use Plan by providing much needed warehouse space. The development also
creates jobs in the City by providing office space within the facility. These uses align with
the intended use of this property in the comprehensive plan.

The fourth requirement concerns the inclusion of design elements that alleviate existing
issues such as congestion, fire safety, promotion of health and welfare, provision of light and
air, expectations of overcrowding, preservation of historical features, and/or facilitation of
adequate infrastructure and amenities for the community. The proposed PDD meets the
intent of the fourth requirement in multiple ways.

This development will connect to the City’s utility system that are already present at the
perimeter of the development. This ensures the project will have little burden to the City as
it relates to utility maintenance upon completion of the project. The City has likely spent a
lot of money on construction and maintenance of these utilities to facility development of
this property.

The proposed roadway network associated with the PDD conforms to the Major
Thoroughfare Plan by providing connection points to Sawyer Road to the North which is
classified as a Secondary Arterial. This robust existing roadway system will lessen
congestion in the streets. It will also provide easier access for fire, police, and ambulance
services to the eastern limits of the city.

Olsson 6-Point Junction - PDD Page 1 0of 4

023-02800 -




Item 5.

To ensure a clean, safe, and vibrant neighborhood, the property is intended to remain under
one owner and rent out the spaces. The owner will be responsible for maintenance of all
facilities in order to keep the site clean and visually appealing.

B. DEFINITIONS

The definitions contained in Article 405-I shall apply to this ordinance, unless modified herein.

C. INTENSITY OF DEVELOPMENT
Development shall adhere to the following standards.

1. The development shall not have more than 200,000 square feet of building area on the 18.39 acre
site. Refer to the attached exhibit for building Locations.

D. USES PERMITTED

1. The entire site shall allow Warehouse and Office uses as defined in the Light Industrial (M-1)
District Regulation [405.170] of the City of Republic Municipal Code.

E. BULK, AREA, AND HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS
Development shall adhere to the following standards:

1. Lots will be subject to the City’s Site Plan Review requirements and procedures.
2. Minimum Yard Requirements
a. FrontYard =15t
b. RearYard=15-ft
c.  Side Street Setback = 15-ft
3. Maximum lot coverage = 90%
4. No maximum building height unless the structure is adjacent to a single-family residential district, in
which case the height of the structure shall remain below a forty-five degree (45°) bulk plane as
measured from the boundary of the adjacent residential district.

F. Public Facilities

Public utilities, roads, and stormwater shall be designed in accordance with the City of Republic
Design Standards. Water will be connected to the existing public system along York Avenue.
Electric will be provided by the local utility provider. Sanitary Sewer will connect to the existing
public main along York Avenue as well. Stormwater detention will be provided internally to the
PDD as seen in the PDD Exhibit.

G. ACCESS TO PUBLICTHOROUGHFARES

Access to the public street system shall conform to those shown on the attached Development Plan
as well as the PDD specific traffic study completed. The PDD will not allow direct access to York

Olsson 6-Point Junction - PDD Page 2 of 4

023-02800 o




Avenue.
H. OFF-STREET PARKING AND CIRCULATION

Off-Street Parking shall comply with the City of Republic Land Use Article 405-VI in effect at the
time of development. Final circulation path must be sufficient to allow traversal by fire service
vehicles as necessitated by the final design of the building.

I. SIGNS

Signage shall comply with Chapter 415 of the City of Republic Municipal Code in effect at the time
of development.

J.  LANDSCAPING & SCREENING

1. Landscaping and screening around the western and south lot lines shall be Type A screening per
the City of Republic Article 405-X and Article 405-XI in effect at the time of development. See
attached PDD Exhibit for screening limits.

2. See attached site section for additional landscaping buffer to be provided along York Avenue.

K. MAINTENANCE OF COMMON AREAS AND FACILITIES

The maintenance of common areas and facilities within the District shall remain the responsibility
of the developer(s) or shall be assumed by a duly constituted property owners association
meeting all legal requirements.

L. PHASING

Development may be phased provided that all public improvements directly related to each phase
are completed at the time of its development and that improvements serving the District as a
whole and the adjoining area are completed in a sequence assuring full utility of the District as a
whole and all areas within the District and so that future public improvements required by this
ordinance or other applicable ordinances of the City are not compromised or rendered unduly
difficult. Refer to the Development Plan for Phasing limits. Proposed approximate phasing of
lots within the PDD is as follows:

Phase 1: 50,000 SF as seen on the attached exhibit. Will include temporary fire lane on the far
side of the building meeting requirements of 2018 IFC. Detention pond will be
included for full build out as part of phase 1.

Phase 2: 75,000 SF addition to the initial building as seen in the attached exhibit.

Phase 3: 50,000 SF additional building to the southeast.

Phase 4: 25,000 SF additional building to the southwest.

The construction and, if necessary, final platting of the first phase shall be completed within two
(2) years of the date of approval of the development plan. If the first phase has been
constructed and a final plat issued, subsequent phases may be submitted covering portions of
the approved development plan; provided, however, that all phases of the development plan
and final platting must be completed within eight (8) years of the date of approval of the

Olsson 6-Point Junction - PDD Page 3 of 4
023-02800

Item 5.

33




Item 5.

development plan. If the development plan and final platting have not been completed within
the timeline set in this Section, then the development plan shall be resubmitted to the City for
extension and approval in accordance with the provisions of Section 410.150 hereof. If an
extension and approval is not granted, the original development plan approval shall be null and
void. It shall not be the responsibility of the City to notify the applicant of an expired

development plan.

Olsson 6-Point Junction - PDD Page 4 of 4
023-02800

34




USER: cweimer

V_XBNDY_02302800

= TS
. i

—
=7
T
s L
of 2%z 3
= Sgi RS "NO TRUCK TRAFFIC”
i . p e
oS 3 e SIGNAGE
_____ T i e, = = e a2 (’) YORK AVENUE O = i
———————— - CREETT RN g o (LOCAL STREET, 50' ROW REQ.) o
. E—— - — =
O — I | \ I
| "NO TRUCK TRAFFIC”
FUTURE PHASE \ I | SIGNAGE
25,000 S.F. l
> WAREHOUSE FACILITY I o
s 100’ x 250’ | o
@93394 MAX HT. = 35’ K o I
2 , o)
¥ —=
b DETENTION BASIN | A O
l +2 ACRES I | s a
(PHASE 1) , X O
o0
K =
PROP. 10’ " | x J
. <
U/E _h L7 I
| S |
l I ok
EXIST. TREES WITHIN | ok
EXIST. EASEMENT AND | x
PROP. LANDSCAPE | e
SCREEN TO REMAIN : W<
AS FEASIBLE FUTURE PHASE I =9 |
| 50,000 S.F. | <&
| WAREHOUSE FACILITY I RS l
l 100’ x 500’ | )
| l MAX HT. = 35' N ~
—{ =—LANDSCAPE :
| ||  SCREEN )
| <
| S HE |V
~lI J\ = Q- I | <+ m
i | F v |
< f
\ ~ I
M I
Y |
>
N | VAR. WIDTH

R-0-W DEDI(}ATION

———— e+  omm

PHASE 1 50,000 S.F.
-— FUTURE PHASE 75,000 S.F.
125,000 S.F. WAREHOUSE

———l

&
\T

XREFS: V_XTOP0_02302800

F:\2023\02501-03000\023—02800\40—Design\AutoCAD\Final Plans\Xref\C_PBASE_02302800.dwg
Aug 21, 2023 4:26pm

DWG:
DATE:

\ \ s
Y, N FACILITY
~_ 200’ x 625 |
. 9 MAX HT. = 35’
- \
\ ~
S~
S~
\ I
\ I
/
\ /
s '??‘5:
\ I
| /
\p) l/ 4
S
—N—
PROVIDED: BUILDING AREA (MAXIMUM): UEGﬂ usE REQUESTED:
CITY REQUIREMENTS RIGHT OF WAY WAREHOUSE AND OFFICE SPACE IN

405.570.A.6 — 3 SPACES PLUS 1 PER EMPLOYEE, 1 LOADING
SPACE PER 10,000 SF

405.600 - 9'X19’ SPACES. 23’ AISLE WIDTH
405.770 - 10% REQUIRED LANDSCAPED AREA
405.810 — SCREEN -

TYPE A SCREEN — OPAQUE SCREEN 6’ IN HEIGHT
WTH INTERMITTENT VISUAL OBSTRUCTIONS TO A

HEIGHT OF AT LEAST 12'.

170 SPACES (INCLUDING 6 ADA)
SETBACK REQUIREMENTS MET

SITE IMPERVIOUS AREA:

18.39 AC TOTAL

10.47 AC IMPERVIOUS (56.93%)

7.92 AC LANDSCAPED AREA (43.07%)

PHASE 1 — 50,000 SF
FUTURE PHASE — 150,000 SF
TOTAL — 200,000 SF

———— EXIST. PROPERTY LINE
————————————————— PROP. LANDSCAPE SCREEN

EXIST. SANITARY PIPE

EXIST. OVERHEAD POWER

EXIST. WATER PIPE

EXISTING PHONE LINES UNDERGROUND

ACCORDANCE WITH LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (M—1)
DISTRICT REGULATIONS (405.170).

0’ 25 50 100°

e

SCALE IN FEET

PROJECT NO: 023-02800

DRAWN BY: CRW

DATE: 08-21-2023

6-POINT JUNCTION PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Springfield, MO 65806
TEL 417.890.8802 35

EXHIBIT

550 St. Louis Street




USER: cweimer

C_PBASE_02302800

V_XBNDY_02302800

DWG:  F:\2023\02501-03000\023—02800\40—Design \Exhibits\2023.08.03—REPUBLIC WAREHOUSE SECTION\Landscape Buffer Exhibit_02302800.dwg
XREFS: V_XTOP0_02302800

DATE: Aug 21, 2023 4:32pm

EXISTING POWER POLE

YORK
AVENUE

10’
WATER EASEMENT

RIGHT-OF —WAY

3’ TALL BERM
6’ TALL WOOD FENCE

20’ LANDSCAPE BUFFER

6’ WOOD FENCE
2 CANOPY TREES, 1 UNDERSTORY TREE,
2 EVERGREEN TREE PER 100 L.F.

35 MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT

WAREHOUSE FACILITY
MAX HT. = 35

IR

SO OO0,

LANDSCAPE BUFFER DETAIL

20%0%6%6%6%%%6%%% % %%

ANEVAN ANEVAN

P ey —

25 5

SCALE IN FEET

10’

PROJECT NO:

6-POINT JUNCTION PLANNED

DRAWN BY: RAR

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DATE: 08-21-2023

550 St. Louis Street

Springfield, MO 65806
TEL 417.890.8802

EXHIBIT




Planning and Zoning Commission

REPUBLIC EXHIBIT E

M| S O UR

Item 6.

Project/Issue Name: ORD 23-007. Public Hearing and Possible Vote to Recommend the Approval
of Amendments to Chapter 410 Subdivision Regulations

Submitted By: BUILDS Department
Presented By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner
Date: September 11, 2023

ISSUE IDENTIFICATION

Consideration to approve Amendments to Chapter 410 Subdivision Regulations.

DiSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Chapter 410 Subdivision Regulations is the part of the City’s Municipal Code that informs potential
developing parties, project design teams, associated contractors, and City Staff as to rules of conduct
from the point of application for a Preliminary Plat through to the acceptance of the Final Plat — and the
related infrastructure, for creating a subdivision.

Much of the code in Chapter 410 originates from the greater overhaul to the City’s Municipal
Ordinances that occurred in 1999. Over the years only minor amendments have been put in place as
the need arose. The goal of the subject amendment, however, is to bring the chapter in line with
existing processes while accurately reflecting the internal ramifications of the creation of the BUILDS
Department as well as the subsequent changes in reference language this requires.

Below are brief descriptions of particular elements thought to be of interest:
General

o Updated text to reflect departmental reorganization and creation of the BUILDS Department;
e Updated text to reflect changes in language and standards of state statutes;
e Reduced instances where tasks are tied to specific positions to minimize impact of
organizational transitions;
e Updated processes to account for practical application. Includes:
o Reduction/Alteration of various hard copy requirements to be provided by applicants;
o Addition of language clarifying digital file requirements for various submittals.

ORD 23-007

37




REPUBLIC

M| S O UR

Definitions [410.020; 410.360]

Planning and Zoning Commission

EXHIBIT E

Item 6.

e Update definitions to better encapsulate the terms, therein;

e Add/Remove definitions to account for the new and deleted ordinance text;

e Alteration of “Subdivisions (General)” definition to remove ability for subdivision of land

greater than or equal to five acres to be conducted without jurisdictional review.

Preliminary Plat [Article 410-Ill Major Subdivisions — Preliminary Plat

e Change in the submittal requirements that separates the plat into two documents — Preliminary

Survey Plan and Preliminary Engineering Plan. The Preliminary Survey Plan depicts those

elements derived from the work of the surveyor and the Preliminary Engineering Plan reflects
those of the engineer. This change allows each professional to attest, through their signature

and professional seal, only to the work for which they have the necessary expertise.

Stormwater Management For Public And Private Improvements [Article 410-VII]

e Removal of Design Standards in preparation for adoption of “The Stormwater Design Manual”
by City Council in subsequent meeting [410.650];
e Require that any overland drainage easements located on a private lot not count toward the

total required square footage for that lot [410.650.F.2.a];

e Removal of discretionary allowance for fee in lieu of detention [416.690.G.3].

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the approval of the referenced Amendment.

ORD 23-007

38




410.010 Jurisdiction

The rules and regulations governing plats of subdivisions of land, ard lot splits, and lot combinations
contained herein shall apply within the corporate limits of the City of Republic in accordance with the
provisions of Section 89.400, RSMo.

410.020 Definitions
For the purpose of interpreting these regulations, certain words and terms are defined as follows:

ADOPTED PLANS
Any plans, maps, or supporting documentation adopted by the City Council as ordinance(s).

ALLEY

A passage or way affording generally a secondary means of vehicular access to the back or side of abutting
properties and is not intended for general traffic circulation.

AS-BUILT PLANS

A plan representing the construction of the actual infrastructure built within the subdivision as it relates
to the approved construction plans as well as serving as official public notice of all finish floor
elevations.

BLOCK
A tract of land entirely surrounded by public highways, streets, waterways or railway rights-of-way, etc.,
or any combination thereof.

BUILDING OFFICIAL
The Building Official of the City of Republic, Missouri, or whomever shall be designated as building official.

BUILDS DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATOR
The Administrator of the BUILDS Department of the City of Republic, Missouri.

CITY
The City of Republic, Missouri.

CITY COUNCIL
The City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri.

CITY ENGINEER
The City Engineer of the City of Republic, Missouri, or whomever shall be designated as engineer.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The Comprehensive or Master Plan of the City of Republic, Missouri, whether in whole or in part, as
adopted by the Republic Planning_and Zoning Commission and the City Council and duly recorded by the
office of the County Recorder of Greene County.

CITY INSPECTOR
The Construction Inspector of the City of Republic, Missouri, or whomever shall be designated as
construction inspector.

COUNTY
Greene County, Missouri.

Item 6.

39



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.010_Jurisdiction
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.020_Definitions

COUNTY CLERK
The office of the Greene County Clerk.

CUL-DE-SAC
A short street having one (1) end open to traffic and being terminated at the other end by a vehicular
turnaround.

DEVELOPER
See "Subdivider".

DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT
Agreement between the City of Republic and Developer entered into by City Council.

DIGITAL COPY

A Portable Document Format (PDF) file providing an electronic image of text of text and graphic that
looks like a printed document and can be viewed, printed, and electronically transmitted.

EASEMENT
A grant by the property owner of the use, for a specific purpose or purposes, of a strip of land by the
general public, utility companies or private individuals.

IMPROVEMENTS
Grading, street surfacing, curbs and gutters, sidewalks, crosswalks, culverts, bridges, water, sanitary and
storm sewers, lines, and other utilities, and other required features.

LOT
A parcel of land occupied or intended for occupancy by a building or an integrated group of buildings and
uses customarily incidental, including such open spaces as are required by the Zoning Code.

OPEN SPACE, PUBLIC

Land which may be dedicated or reserved for acquisition for general use by the public, including parks,
recreation areas, school sites, community or public building sites, and other such areas that shall be
deemed necessary.

PLANNING COMMISSION
The City Planning_and Zoning Commission of Republic, Missouri.

PLANNING COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE
The City Principal Planner, or his/her designee, in matters pertaining to the subdivision of land.

PLAT, FINAL
A complete and exact subdivision plat prepared for official recording as required by Statute and

ordinances of the City of Republic to define property boundaries and—propesed—stireets—and
improvementsnecessary for the transfer of title by lot and dedication of streets and easements.

PLAT, PRELIMINARY
A preliminary plat for a subdivision shall consist of preliminary survey plan and a preliminary engineering

plan and shall meet the reqwrements hereln be—a—fe#maJ—plaa—d;awn—te—sea#e—w@eatmg—p#emmenfe

Item 6.

40




PRE-APPLICATION SKETCH
A general drawing or sketch and discussion showing the general layout and characteristics of the proposed
subdivision.

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PLAN

A preliminary plan for a subdivision shall be a formal plan, drawn to scale, indicating prominent existing
and proposed features of the tract and its surroundings, and the general layout of the proposed
infrastructure for the subdivision, and shall meet the requirements herein.

PRELIMINARY SURVEY PLAN

A preliminary plan for a subdivision shall be a formal plan, drawn to scale, indicating prominent existing
and proposed features of the tract and its surroundings, and the general layout of the proposed
infrastructure for the subdivision, and shall meet the requirements herein.

PRINCIPAL PLANNER
The Principal Planner of the City of Republic, Missouri, or whomever shall be designated by the BUILDS
Administrator as Principal Planner.

RIGHT-OF-WAY

3 3 3 e ose-All land
considered as City controlled space by virtue of ordinance, dedication, easements, platting, or other
written instruments providing the City control over others usage thereof.

SUBDIVIDER

A person, firm or corporation undertaking the subdividing or resubdividing of a lot, tract or parcel of land
into two (2) or more lots, or other subdivisions of land for the purpose of transfer of ownership or
development, whether immediate or future, including all changes in street or lot lines.

SUBDIVISIONS (General)

The subdivision of land shall be deemed to be the division of any parcel or tract of land into two (2) or
more parcels, sites or lots, any-ene{d}-efwhich-containslessthanfive{5}aeres for the purpose, whether
immediate or future, of transfer of ownership or development, provided however, that the following shall
not constitute a subdivision: transfer of interests by will or pursuant to court order; leases for a term not
to exceed ten (10) years; mortgages or easements; and the sale or exchange of parcels of land between
owners of adjoining property if additional lots are not thereby created, and the lots resulting are not
reduced below the size required by law.

SUBDIVISION (Minor)
Notwithstanding other definitions of this Chapter, a minor subdivision is defined as any division of land
which creates not more than four (4) tracts.

SUBDIVISION (Major)

Notwithstanding other definitions of this Chapter, a major subdivision is defined as any division of land
into five or more lots, shall include the construction and dedication of public infrastructure, shall follow
the preliminary/final plat procedure and shall be regulated by the provisions of Articles lll, IV and V of this
Chapter.

Item 6.

41




410.030 No Contract Of Sale

Whoever, being the owner or agent of the owner of any land located within the City of Republic, transfers
or sells or agrees to sell or negotiates to sell any land covered by the provisions of Articles Il — V of this
Chapter before a subdivision plat has been approved by the City Council and recorded or filed in the office
of the Recorder of Deeds of Greene County shall forfeit and pay a penalty, as provided for in the fee
schedule found in Section 805.050 of this code, for each lot or parcel so transferred or sold or agreed or
negotiated to be sold. The City of Republic enjoin such transfer or sale or agreement by action for
injunction brought in any court of equity jurisdiction or may recover the said penalty by a civil action in
any court of competent jurisdiction.

410.040 Interpretation And Conflict With Other Laws

This Chapter shall not apply to any lot or lots forming a part of a subdivision created and recorded prior
to the adoption of this code, except for further dividing of existing lots, or the addition of improvements
not authorized or approved under previous platting. This Chapter is not intended to repeal, abrogate,
annul or in any way impair or interfere with existing provisions of other ordinances, or regulations, private
agreements, or with recorded restrictive covenants running with the land to which the City of Republic is
a party. Where this Chapter imposes a greater restriction upon land than is imposed or required by
previous ordinances of the City of Republic, the provisions of this Chapter shall prevail.

410.050 Administration
The provisions of this Chapter shall be administered in accordance with Chapter 89, RSMo., as amended,
and shall be administered by the Planning and Zoning Commission, the City Administrator, the BUILDS

Administrator-the-CityPlanneror Building-Official or their delegate_designee, the Mayor, and the City

Council.

410.060 Fees
The fees for the review of plans and plats and other sundry costs shall be paid to the City by the developer
upon submitting a request or application for approval by the City.

410.070 Conformity With Zoning Code

All plats reviewed under provisions of this Chapter shall conform to all Zoning Code provisions for the
district in which the proposed plat is to be located. All required zoning changes shall be made prior to
approval of the Record Plat.

410.075 Stop Work

A. Authority. Whenever the Gity-Planner BUILDS Administrator or his/her designee finds any work
regulated by this Code or the associated regulations being performed in a manner contrary to the
provisions of this Code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner, the Bbuilding Oefficial is authorized
to issue a stop work order.

B. Issuance. The stop work order shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the property
involved, or to the owner's agent, or to the person doing the work. Upon issuance of a stop work
order, the cited work shall immediately cease. The stop work order shall state the reason for the
order, and the conditions under which the cited work will be permitted to resume.

C. Unlawful Continuance. Any person who shall continue any work after having been served with a
stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or
unsafe condition, shall be subject to penalties as prescribed by law.

Item 6.

42



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.030_No_Contract_Of_Sale
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.040_Interpretation_And_Conflict_With_Other_Laws
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.050_Administration
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.060_Fees
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.070_Conformity_With_Zoning_Code
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.075_Stop_Work

410.080 Denial Of Utility Service, Permits And Plat Approval

A. Permits. No building permits shall be issued for any structure on a lot in a subdivision for which a
plat has not been finally approved and recorded in the manner prescribed herein.

B. Denial Of Utility Service, Plat Approval And/Or Building Permits. To promote and ensure the public
health, safety and welfare, the City shall have the authority by written order to deny the
connection of utility service, plat or plan approval and/or building permits on the grounds that
non-compliance with City regulations, adopted ordinances and/or policies have occurred.

410.090 Compliance With Design Principles Required

In planning and developing a subdivision the developer shall comply with the general principles of design
and minimum requirements for the layout of subdivisions set forth in Article VI, and with the rules and
regulations concerning required improvements set forth in Article IV, in these regulations, and in every
case shall pursue the procedure in the following Sections. Approval of any plat or plan by the City shall
not relieve the subdivider or developer from complying with the regulations established herein.

410.100 Platting Exceptions

A. The requirements of this Chapter do not apply to the following types of land subdivision:

1. 2: The conveyance of parcels of land or interests therein for use as a right of way for
railroads or other public utility facilities or other pipe lines which do not involve any new
streets or easements of access.

2. 3-The conveyance of land for highway or other public purposes or grants or conveyance
relating to the vacation of land impressed with a public use.

3. 4. Conveyances made to correct description of prior conveyances.

Article 410-11 Minor Subdivisions

410.110 Minor Subdivisions

A. All subdivisions of land, not otherwise classified as a major subdivision_and regardless of the size
of the area of land to be subdivided, shall be classified as a minor subdivision and shall be subject
to the procedures described in this Article. Applications for minor subdivisions will be reviewed
by the BUILDS Department, considered—and-forwarded-tothe PlanningandZening Commission
based on the following qualifications:

1. The proposed subdivision will not create more than four tracts of land, including the
remainder to be retained by the owner.

2. The proposed subdivision does not include the dedication of a new street or other public
right-of-way or change in existing streets, general utility easements, water, sewer or other
public improvements. It is the intent of this provision to limit approval of minor
subdivisions to those cases where the improvements required by these regulations have
been provided, with exception to the extension of service to individual lots. It is not the

Item 6.

43



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.080_Denial_Of_Utility_Service,_Permits_And_Plat_Approval
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.090_Compliance_With_Design_Principles_Required
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.100_Platting_Exceptions
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Article_410-II_Minor_Subdivisions
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.110_Minor_Subdivisions

Item 6.

intention of this provision to permit all requests, based solely requests that meet the
minimum standards.

3. The subdivision is in compliance with the Zoning Code and other ordinances and
regulations of the City of Republic and no substandard tract, parcel or lot will be created.

4. The subdivision will not result in substantial increases in service requirements (e.g.,
utilities, traffic control, parks, schools, streets, etc.), nor interfere with the maintenance
of existing service levels (e.g., additional curb cuts, repaving, etc.) asd-determined by the
BUILDS Administrator or their designee.

5. The parent tract was lawful under these regulations at the time the existing property
description was recorded.

6. The configuration of the property was created by a court decree or order resulting from
testamentary or interstate provisions.

7. The configuration of the property was created by the assembly or combination of existing
tracts of record.

8. Minor subdivisions shall be limited so that no more than four (4) new tracts or parcels of
land are created by-minersubdivision from the original parent tract or parcel as that tract
or parcel was at the time of annexation, or else as the parcel was platted within a major
subdivision in the interest of preventing the circumvention of the major subdivision
process. Upon a request for a second (2nd) minor subdivision of a tract or parcel
previously subdivided into fewer than four (4) new tracts or parcels, the BUILDS
Department may request that City Council may authorize staff by resolution to execute
a subsequent minor subdivision that otherwise meets the minor subdivision
requirements.

410.120 Minor Subdivisions Procedures

A. Filing Procedures. The applicant shaII submit a digita m+n+m4=+m—ef—ﬁ-ve—(5-) copyies of the proposed
minor subdivision e , , acompleted
application form and applicable appllcat|on fees, as prowded for in the fee schedule found in

Section 805. 050 to the Repubhc Gemmamt—y—Deve#epment—DepaH—memBUILDS Department

B. Review Criteria And Procedures An appllcatlon for minor subd|V|5|on shall be rewewed for
conformance with the City's zoning and subdivision regulations. The Cemmunity
DevelopmentBUILDS Department staff—public-werks—staffand-theCity Engineer shall use the
following criteria to review the minor subdivision for its conformance and shall ensure the
development in the proposed location:

1. Will be in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, thoroughfare plan, zoning regulations
or other plans officially adopted by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City
Councils

C. Effect Of Minor Subdivision Approval. Minor subdivision approval shall confer upon the developer

the right that the City will not change the general terms and conditions under which the approval

was granted. Within sixty (60) days after approval of the plat by the Cemmunity-Development
DepartmentBUILDS Department staff, the subdivider shall file said plat with the County Recorder.

The subdivider shall pay the cost of recording the plat—easements,—+ight-of-way-deeds and any
other related accompanying documents. If the plat is disapproved, the Cemmunity
DevelopmentBUILDS Department staff shall notify the applicant in writing of the actions and
reasons therefore. If the applicant shall fail to record the plat within sixty (60) days, then the plat
shall be held for naught.

44



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.120_Minor_Subdivisions_Procedures

D.

Information Required. The following information is required on all minor subdivision plats
submitted for approval. The required information may be combined for presentation on one (1)
or more drawings or maps. In the interests of clarity, speed and efficiency in the review process,
Community—DevelopmentBUILDS Department—staff may require that the information be
presented on separate or additional drawings or maps. In all cases the minor subdivision plat
submission shall be designed in conformity with the Republic Zoning Code, Chapter 405, and shall
include the following information:

1. The proposed subdivision name, the general location, as it is commonly known, or by
some other name by which the project may be identified, the name and address of the
present owner and sub divider and the surveyor. The City shall supply a case number
identifying the minor subdivision prior to submission.

2. Title,_bar scale, north arrow, date of preparation and each date; which a revision was
made.

3. Location by section, township, range, City, County, State or if a re-subdivision of an
existing or approved subdivision, then by lot or block numbers and name of original
subdivision.

4. The names, location and dimensions of adjacent streets within any adjoining subdivision.

5. The accuracy class of property shall be noted on the plat as Urban Class property or
Rural Class property.

a. For Urban Class property the uncertainty due to random errors of any
dimension or direction, distance or coordinate shown on the plat shall not
exceed fifty parts per million (50 ppm) or one-tenth of a foot (0.10’) for
distances less than two thousand feet (2,000’) at the sixty-eight percent (68%)
confidence level [one (1) sigma].

b. For Rural Class property the uncertainty due to random errors of any dimension
or direction, distance or coordinate shown on the plat shall not exceed one
hundred parts per million (100 ppm) or one tenth of a foot (0.10’) for distances
less than one thousand feet (1,000’) at the sixty-eight percents (68%)
confidence level [one (1) sigmal].

6. 5: The plat beundaries—shall show the external-bearings_of all boundary lines, and

distances a-nel—mtemaJ—ang-les—shall be dlsplaved with dimensioneds in hundredths of a

: -All bearlngs

shaII be obtained on Grld North and bv means of GPS, or optical instruments using
celestial or solar observations.by—determination—eftrue—north-—by selaroer—celestial
shoorration:

7. 6-The boundary lines, location and dimensions_by bearings and distance of existing-and

newly created tracts parcels or Iots that are part of the minor subd|V|5|on shall be shown

eleseﬂ-ptren—and—leeatfen—Survey data shall meet aII appllcable portlons of the current
standards—promulgated—by—the-State—of Misseuri; "Missouri Standards for Property

Boundary Surveys" as promulgated by the Departments of Agriculture, Division of

Welghts, Measures and Consumer ProtectnonM-rmmemétandards—feleepeFty-Bewéary
aY Fa I a¥a

Reseurees AII survey datum shaII be vertlcally t|ed to the NAVD 88 datum and shall
graphically show a horizontally tied to two subdivision corners by bearing and distance

Item 6.

45




10.

11.

12.

13.
14.
15.

16.

from the nearest published GRS monument which nhame and/or designation nhumber,
date of adjustment and coordinates shall be noted. If the MoDOT Real Time Network is
used in lieu of a GRS monument, then a statement to that effect shall be noted along
with the epoch/date of subdivision control. Also, State Plane Coordinates of at least
two external boundary corners of subdivision shall be shownthe-Missouri-Geographical
Refarance Stations{GRS).

Curve Data. When a boundary line is on a circular curve, the curve data shall be shown
in place or on an included Curve Table.

a. Curve data shown shall consist of at least the following: curve number/name if
table is used, delta or central angle, radius, arc length, chord length, and
bearing.

b. Non-tangent curves shall be noted in place or within a Curve Table and shall
show: Central Angle rather than Delta, bearing from radius point to point of
curvature, and all other curve components mentioned in the above provision.

7 Names of adjacent subdivisions and owners of adjoining parcels of land not
gasubdivideddand.

&: The exact location and distances of all structures and other physical improvements in
relation to proposed lot lines.

9. The extent and location of floodplains, floodways, or other waterways of record;
elevations of which, shall be based on applicable Flood Insurance Studies, Flood Insurance
Rate Maps, Flood Boundary and Floodway Maps.

10- Location of sanitary sewer, storm sewers, water mains, gas lines, fire hydrants, electric
and telephone poles and street-lights.

12. Existing zoning classification of the minor subdivision and adjacent area.

43-Setback lines on all lots and other sites.

4. Certification by Missouri Professional Land Surveyor registered-tand-surveyoras to

accuracy of survey as such:

That |, , do hereby certify that this plat was prepared

under my supervision from an actual survey of the land herein described prepared by
dated and signed by P.L.S. No.

and that the corner monuments and lot corner pins shown herein were placed under

the personal supervision of P.L.S. No. in accordance with

theall applicable portions of the current Missouri Standards for Property Boundary

Surveys as promulgated by the Department of Agriculture, Division of Weights,

Measures and Consumer Protection.Division-ef-Geelogy-and-tand-Survey-Missouri

'e "NMinim

Surveys'
Date Prepared:

Signature:
Missouri P.L.S. No.
45. Certificate of Approval by the CemmunityBUILDSBevelopment Department staff (to
be placed on plat) which shall be provided as follows:

In accordance with the provisions as set forth in the Subdivision Regulations of Republic,
Missouri, | , do hereby certify that on the

Item 6.

46




day of ,20___, the CommunityDevelopmentBUILDS Department

approved the request for a minor subdivision for

Any further subdivision of the above described land or modifications of the land
description(s) will require reapproval in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations of
the City of Republic, Missouri.

Community-DevelepmentBUILDS Department Representative

Date

17. 16. Statement of owner(s) certifying that he/shethe owner had title to the land being
subdivided:
As owner | have caused the land described on this plat to be surveyed, divided, mapped,
and all access rights reserved and dedicated as represented on the plat.

Owner and/or Subdivider

Date

E. Final Submittal. Final submittal of the Minor Subdivision Plat shall be prepared on a reproducible
original (mylar) twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches or those dimensions required by
the Greene County Recorder of Deeds. In addition to the original the City may require additional
elements to incorporate the Minor Subdivision into the City map. The following items shall be
submitted:

1. 3. All applicable off-site easements and right-of-way deeds.
2. 4 Copy of private and restrictive covenants to be recorded.
3. 5. Digital copy of subdivision plat, cad file, etc. for City map upgrades.

Article 410-111 Major Subdivisions -- Preliminary Plat

410.130 Major Subdivisions -- Preliminary Plat

All subdivision of land classified as a major subdivision shall be subject to the procedures described in this
Article. Approval of a Final erReeerd-Plat shall be subject to approval of a Preliminary Plat in accordance
with regulations contained herein.

410.140 Application For Preliminary Plat

The developer shall submit a digitalmirimum—efFfive{5} copyies of the proposed Preliminary Plat
consisting of the associated Preliminary Engineering Plan and Preliminary Survey Plan-ereore, as
required by the City, a completed application form and applicable application fees, as provided for in the
fee schedule found in Section 805.050, to the Republic Community-DevelopmentBUILDS Department at
least twenty (20) working days prior to the meeting at which approval is requested. A completed
Preliminary Plat checklist shall accompany all applications for major subdivisions.

410.150 Review Criteria And Procedures For Preliminary Plat

Item 6.

47



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Article_410-III_Major_Subdivisions_--_Preliminary_Plat
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.130_Major_Subdivisions_--_Preliminary_Plat
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.140_Application_For_Preliminary_Plat
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.150_Review_Criteria_And_Procedures_For_Preliminary_Plat

A. Application and Preliminary Plat shall be reviewed for conformance with all applicable City
adopted codes and regulations by the BUILDS Department staffCityPlanner. If the BUILDS
Department staffCity-PlannerorCity-Engineer reviews the application and plat and finds that it is
incomplete or that the requirements of this Chapter, the comprehensive plan or other adopted
plans have not been met, than-the BUILDS DepartmentCity-Planner shall so notify the applicant
in writing of any deficiencies. Once all deficiencies have been addressed and the BUILDS
DepartmentCityPlannerand-City-Engineer hasve approved the plat, than-a recommendation for
approval or denial shall be transmitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission. After receiving
comments and recommendations from the €ity BUILDS Department staffRlanner, the Planning
and Zoning Commission shall review the Preliminary Plat for its conformance to the following
review criteria and shall ensure the development, in the proposed location:

1. Will not endanger the public health or safety;

2. Will not injure the value of adjoining property or abutting property;

3. Will be in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, Transportation Plan, Zoning Code,
Water System Master Plan, Wastewater System Facility Plan or other plans officially
adopted by the City Council; and

4. Will be in harmony with the area in which it is located.

B. The Planning and Zoning Commission may request modifications to the Preliminary Plat. The
Planning and Zoning Commission shall then confer approval, conditional approval or disapproval
of the Preliminary Plat within forty-five (45) days of filing and transmit all copies of the Preliminary
Plat together with written reasons for its action to the City Council. The approval or the refusal to
approve the Preliminary Plat by the City Council shall take place within thirty (30) days from and
after the date in which the Planning and Zoning Commission has made a recommendation to
approve or refuse to approve the Preliminary Plat. Once the City Council have approved or refused
to approve the Preliminary Plat, the BUILDS DepartmentCityPlanner shall notify the owner or
applicant of the decision in writing.

410.160 Effect Of Preliminary Plat Approval

Preliminary Plat approval shall confer upon the developer, for a period of two (2) years from date of
approval, the conditional right that the City Council will not change the general terms and conditions
under which the approval was granted. After approval of the Preliminary Plat, the developer may proceed
with the detailed construction plans for all required infrastructure of the area planned for inclusion on
the final plat. The City Council, upon recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, may
extend this two (2) year period if the developer has applied in writing for such an extension and the
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council determine a longer period should be granted due to
unusual circumstances. If an extension is not granted, the Preliminary Plat approval is null and void. If no
Final Plat of a subdivision for which preliminary approval has been given is approved within said two (2)
year period, or such longer period as the City Council may allow, a resubmission and review by the
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council shall be required. It shall not be the responsibility of
the City to notify the applicant of an expired Preliminary Plat.

410.170 Phased Construction And Platting

If phased construction is planned, the construction and final platting of the first phase shall be completed
within two (2) years of the date of approval of the Preliminary Plat. Subsequent phases of the fFinal pPlat
may be submitted covering portions of the approved pPreliminary pPlat; provided, however, that all
phases of the pPreliminary pPlat must be completed within four (4) years of the date of approval of the
pPreliminary pPlat. If all phases of the pPreliminary pPlat have not been completed within four (4) years
of the date of approval of the pPreliminary pPlat, then the pPreliminary pPlat shall be resubmitted to the

Item 6.

48



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.160_Effect_Of_Preliminary_Plat_Approval
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.170_Phased_Construction_And_Platting

City for extension and approval in accordance with the provisions of Section 410.150 hereof. If an
extension and approval is not granted, the original pPreliminary pPlat t approval shall be null and void.

[Ord. No. 03-56 §1, 8-25-2003]

410.180 Existing And Proposed Features To Be Shown On Preliminary Plat

A. For _all applications made, the Preliminary Plat submission must consist of a Preliminary
Engineering Plan and a Preliminary Survey Plan. These two independent elements making up
the entirety of the Preliminary Plat must be provided on separate pages. The Preliminary Plat

submission must contain all of the following information for approval and shall be designed in

conformity with the Design Standards contained in Article IV.-Fhe—folowing—informationis

7
O S d c+—aho ecofraed

Republie.The Preliminary Engineering Plan shall serve as a preliminary construction
document reflecting the general layout of all infrastructure for the proposed subdivision
and must contain all of the following information:

a. Boundary lines. The boundary lines of subject property along with lot and
easement lines, accurate in scale, of the tract to be subdivided. To reduce
clutter during review, the above items may be lighter in color than the
prominent items required on this plan.

b. Survey acknowledgement. The name and license number of the Professional
Land Surveyor or holder of a Corporate Survey License who provided the
boundary information for the Preliminary Engineering Plan, and the date of
usage conformation shall be noted on Plan.

c. Streets and other features. The location, widths and names of all existing streets
or other public ways within or adjacent to the tract.

d. Existing utilities. Including but not limited to electric, gas, sewer, telephone,
water mains, storm sewer, culverts, and other aboveground and underground
structures within the tract and immediately adjacent thereto with pipe sizes
and grades indicated.

e. Proposed design of streets, drainage, etc.

(1) The layout, names and right of way widths of proposed streets, alleys
and easements; the location and approximate sizes of catch basins,
culverts and other drainage structures; the location of proposed sewer
lines, water lines, fire hydrants and other related infrastructure planned
to serve the development.

f. _Topography. Contours at vertical intervals shall be based on the NAVD 88
datum or City monuments and shall be shown as follows:

(1) Average slope less than six percent (6%)—two (2) foot interval contour
map;

(2) Average slope over six percent (6%)—five (5) foot interval contour map.

Item 6.

49



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.180_Existing_And_Proposed_Features_To_Be_Shown_On_Preliminary_Plat

The Preliminary Engineering Plan shall bear the date, sighature and seal of a
Professional Engineer holding a valid license to practice in the State of Missouri
and shall be present on each sheet submitted.

North point, etc. Title, bar scale, north arrow, date of preparation and date of
each successive revision.

Plan must contain all of the following information:

a.

Name and code. The proposed name of the subdivision, which shall not
duplicate or closely resemble the name of another, previously recorded
subdivision in the City of Republic.

Owners of record. The names and addresses of the owner(s) of record,
developer(s), and/or surveyor responsible for the subdivision design.

Vicinity map. A vicinity map at a scale of four hundred (400) feet or more to the
inch shall be drawn on the Preliminary Survey Plan. The map shall indicate:

(1) Section, Township, Range.

(2) Adjacent City Limits, other corporation or ad hoc district lines, such as
school or sewer districts, etc.

(3) The nearest existing highways or thoroughfares, streets and alleys in
neighboring subdivisions or property.

Abutting owners. The name of adjacent subdivisions and the names of record
owners of adjacent parcels of unplatted land.

Boundary lines. The boundary lines, accurate in scale, of the tract to be
subdivided.

Streets and other features. The location, widths and names of all existing or
platted streets or other public ways within or adjacent to the tract, and other
important features such as existing permanent buildings; large trees and
watercourses; railroad lines; corporation and township lines.

Other Existing Elements. Right-of-way for streets and all easements for
drainage, sewer, water and other utilities adjacent or connecting to tract.
Proposed Elements. All proposed right-of-way for streets and all easements for
drainage, sewer, water and other utilities planned to be within the tract. and
immediately adjacent thereto.

Proposed design of streets, drainage, etc.

(1) The layout, names and right-of-way widths of proposed streets, alleys
and labeled easements intended to serve the development.

(2) Where additional right of way is required along an existing road, new
right-of-way line(s) shall be based off section or the adjacent aliquot
part line rather than center-line road splits.

(3) Exemptions or modifications may be made by the BUILDS Administrator
or their designee.

Proposed layout and legal description. The legal description of the entire site to
be subdivided, including acreage in tract, boundary and easement lines,
locations and dimensions and bearings of newly created tracts, parcels or lots
that are part of the subdivision shall be shown on the Preliminary Survey Plan.
The dimensions and location of all arcs, radii points of curvature, tangent
boundaries, and other pertinent survey information necessary to an accurate
description and location. Survey data shall meet all applicable portions of the

Item 6.

50




current Missouri Standards for Property Boundary Surveys as promulgated by
the Department of Agriculture, Division of weights Measures, and Consumer
Protection. All survey datum shall be vertically tied to the NAVD 88 datum and
shall graphically show a horizontal tie to two subdivision corners bearing and
distance from the nearest published GRS monument which name and/or
designation number, date of adjustment and coordinates shall be noted. if the
MoDOT Real Time Network is used in lieu of a GRS monument, then a statement
to that effect shall be noted along with the Epoch of subdivision control.

(1) Curve data — When a boundary, easement, lot or street is on a circular
curve, data shall be shown in place or on an included Curve Table. Curve
data shown shall consist of at least the following: Curve number/name
if table is used; Delta or central angle; Radius; Arc length; Chord length
and bearing.

(2) When curved lot lines are concentric to the centerline of street it shall
be noted as such on the Preliminary Survey Plan.

(3) Non-tangent curves shall be noted in place or in Curve Table and shall
show Central Angle rather than Delta; Bearing from radius point to
point of curvature and all other curve components mentioned above.

Lot information. The plat shall indicate the area, lot size, proposed setbacks and
exact location and distance of all structures and other physical improvements
in relation to proposed lot lines. Each lot should bear sequential numbering.
Zoning. Zoning boundary lines and proposed use of property.

North point, etc. Title, bar scale, north arrow, date of preparation and date of
each successive revision.

Floodplains, etc. The extent and location of floodplains, floodways or other
waterways of record; elevations of which, shall be based on applicable Flood
Insurance Studies, Flood Insurance Rate Maps, Flood Boundary and Floodway
Maps.

Sinkholes. The extent and location of sinkholes must be shown, the location of
which shall be based on the latest data from the Greene County Assessor’s
Department, a report conducted by a Geotechnical Engineer, or a source
approved by the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designee. Any
sinkhole and its associated thirty-foot “No Build” buffer zone must be entirely
contained within a common lot.

The Preliminary Survey Plan shall bear the signature and seal of a Professional
Land Surveyor holding a valid license to practice in the State of Missouri and
shall contain the following statement to be completed by that individual:

(1) That I, , do hereby certify that this plat
was prepared under my supervision from an actual survey of the land
herein _described prepared by dated and
signed by P.L.S. No. and that the corner
monuments and lot corner pins shown herein were placed under the
personal supervision of P.L.S. No. in

accordance with all applicable portions of the current Missouri
Standards for Property Boundary Surveys as promulgated by the
Department of Agriculture, Division of Weights, Measures and
Consumer Protection.
Date Prepared:

Item 6.

51




Signature:

Item 6.

52




Article 410-1V Major Subdivision -- Improvements

410.200 General Procedures For The Preparation And Submission Of Subdivision Improvements Plans
After approval of the Preliminary Plat and prior to approval of the Final Plat, Construction Plans shall be
prepared for all or a specified phase of the subdivision.

410.210 Procedure For Submission Of Subdivision Improvement Plans

A. Preparation Of Plans. It shall be the responsibility of the developer to have construction plans for
streets, utilities and other required improvements prepared and submitted to the City for review.
The Construction Plans for all aspects of the site development shall be prepared by a qualified
pProfessional eEngineer, registered in the State of Missouri. All improvements shall be designed
and constructed in accordance with requirements of Article VI. General Principles of Design and
Minimum Requirements for the Layout of Subdivisions. In addition, all improvements shall be
designed and constructed in accordance with the “Standard Specifications and Details for Water
and Sewer Construction, City of Republic, Missouri”, and the “Standard for Storwater
Management and Design Criteria Manual” and—in—accordance—with—the—Construction
Specifications-forPubliclmprevements,-City-of Republic®, as amended from time to time, on file
with at the offices of the City of Republic Publie-WerksBUILDS Department and incorporated
herein by reference. Five{5)Three (3) physical copies_and a digital version in pdf-shall be
submitted for review to the BUILDS DepartmentRublicWerksDirector. The Construction Plan
shall be any scale frem-{d-inch=20-feet-through-{1-inch-=50-feet}),setong as the scale is an
increment of ten (10) feet and is sufficiently clear in reflecting details of the proposed
construction. The signature and seal of the Professional Engineer in responsible charge shall

Item 6.

53



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.190_Model_Home_Procedure
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Article_410-IV_Major_Subdivision_--_Improvements
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.200_General_Procedures_For_The_Preparation_And_Submission_Of_Subdivision_Improvements_Plans
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.210_Procedure_For_Submission_Of_Subdivision_Improvement_Plans

appear on every plan sheet along with title, bar scale, north arrow, date of preparation and
each date a revision was made shall be shown on each page as applicable. Construction Plans
shall be prepared on exhibits 24 inches x 36 inches and shall be bound by staple on one side. All
plan sheets shall be prepared to a degree to allow for adequate review and construction. Each
page shall contain an approval block for approval from the City of Republic—Public-Werks
Department. The CityBUILDS Department may require additional details to be developed to
establish clarity for review and construction.

Approval Of Construction Plans. The City-Planner BUILDS Department-shall coordinate review and
subsequent approval, with all related City departments, the—Public-\Werks—Director—and—City
Engineer-of the Construction Plans. If the City-PlarrerBUILDS Department determines that the
plans do not meet the minimum standards and require modification, correction and are not
approvable, thenthan the-CityPlannerBUILDS Department staff shall forward a letter to the
developer and his/her engineer stating the deficiencies. After all related deficiencies have been
addressed and approval is given by all related departments—and—the—City—Engineer, the City
PlannerBUILDS Department shall issue an appropriate letter certifying approval, send digital
version of plans with approval signature from City, and_provide notice to proceed with an
application for water and sewer main extension and other related permits from outside agencies.
Review By Outside Agencies. Engineering drawings of all required improvements shall be reviewed
and approved by the €ityBUILDS Department, except for improvements to be made under the
jurisdiction of other Municipal, County or State agencies, in which case the drawings shall be
submitted to the appropriate agency for review and approval. Where review and approval of
engineering drawings is made by such agency, the BUILDS Departmentthe-CityPlanner shall be
given written confirmation that the necessary reviews have been completed and approvals have
been granted.

Review By Consultants. Expenses incurred by the City for required reviews, inspections, and/or
related testing shall be reimbursed to the City, by the developer, for all costs incurred by it in
performing such review, inspection and/or testing, including all professional fees incurred as a
result thereof. To insure payment or reimbursement of such costs, fees and expenses, all
developers, and such other persons or entities associated with developers, as the_BUILDS
Department—Cemmunity—Development—Department deems appropriate, shall execute a
promissory note, payable to the order of the City on demand, in such amount as is anticipated to
cover such costs, fees and expenses. The maker or makers of such promissory note may satisfy
the same by the timely payment of all costs, fees and expenses incurred by the City as identified
hereinabove. Such promissory note shall provide for the payment of interest at no less than
twelve percent (12%) per annum from and after the date of demand and shall further provide for
the payment of attorney fees by the maker or makers in the event of default.

Pre-Construction Meeting And Final Plan Submittal. The City Planner shall coordinate a pre-
construction meeting with the developer, Project Engineer, Construction Inspector, Publie-\Werks
Birector City Engineer, general contractor, all appropriate subcontractors, and department heads.
All related construction practices, policies and requirements will be discussed and established at
the pre-construction meeting. It is the responsibility of the applicant, engineer and contractor to
check and review all City requirements relating to the construction of public improvements. A
minimum of feur{4} two (2) sets of approved plans, bearing the signature of the City Engineer,
prepared on twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches D Size, bound plan sheets and two
(2)one{1)-five{5} sets prepared on twelve{12}-inchesby—eighteen{d8}eleven (11) inches by
seventeen (17) inches_B Size, bound plan sheets shall be submitted at or before the pre-
construction meeting.

Item 6.

54




Item 6.

F. Construction Permit. No person, firm or corporation shall develop, install, alter, grade, remove
vegetation, fill or modify any tract of land, roadway or any City-owned utility within the City of
Republic or cause the same to be undertaken without first securing the approval of the
construction plans as required by this Chapter or other City ordinances. The City shall charge a
construction permit fee, as provided for in the fee schedule found in Section 805.050, for plan
review and field inspection of all related public infrastructure including water, sewer, streets,
stormwater and related infrastructure to be dedicated to the City as part of the development.
Furthermore, no construction permit shall be issued until the following has been received:

1. Receipt of paid construction permit fees on file relating to inspection of infrastructure.

2. The minimum number of approved construction plans sent to the CityPlannrerBUILDS
Department, sealed by the Project Engineer and signed under the hand of the Rublie
Weorks-Director City Engineer or his/her designee.

3. Approvals and permits from other affected County, State or Federal agencies.

4. All off-site utility easements drainage easements and right-of-way deeds shall be
recorded by the County Recorder of Deeds and provided to the City at or before the pre-
construction meeting.

5. Confirmation of execution of any Developer’s Agreement(s) for deferral of required
infrastructure construction.

G. Phasing. Where a subdivision is to be developed in phases, the provisions of this Article shall apply
to each phase. However, improvements and financial guarantees may be required to extend
beyond the boundaries of a subdivision phase if such extension is necessary to ensure the relative
self-sufficiency of the phase pending completion of the entire subdivision. Improvements and
financial guarantees may also be required for public infrastructure beyond the boundaries of a
particular phase of the subdivision in order to secure the construction of planned infrastructure
improvements that are necessitated in order to conform to the City's adopted Comprehensive
Plan or constituent parts thereof. Such extensions, schedules, and similar arrangements shall be
set forth in an agreement between the developer and the Council prior to approval of the Final
Plat.

H. Moadification During Construction. All installation and construction shall conform to the approved
engineering drawings. However, if the developer chooses to make minor modifications in design
and/or specifications during construction, he/she shall make such changes at his/her own risk,
without any assurance that the City will approve the completed installation or construction. It
shall be the responsibility of the developer to notify the City of any changes from the approved
drawings. The developer may be required to correct the installed improvement so as to conform
to the approved engineering drawings.

I.  As-Built Drawings. The developer shall submit to the City-Plarneratleastfive{5}setsofBUILDS
Department "as-built" engineering drawings of the required improvements that have been
completed. Said drawings will consist of all original plan sheets and show the distinct changes
that took place during construction. As-Built Drawings will also be required as digital drawing
(dwg) files, portable document files (pdf) and/or may be required in another digital format at
the BUILDS Department staff's discretion. The Project Engineer shall certify each set of drawings
in accordance with the requirements of Section 410.360.

410.215 Construction Plans

A. The construction plan for all aspects of the site development shall be prepared by a qualified
Pprofessional Eengineer, registered in the State of Missouri. The construction plans shall be
significantly based on the configuration shown on the approved Preliminary Plat. Five{5}Three

55



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.215_Construction_Plans

(3) copies_and a digital copy shall be submitted for review to the Rublic \WeorksDirectorBUILDS

Department. The construction plan shall be any scale frem-ene{1)-inch-equalsten {10} feet
through-one{d}inch-equalsfifty (50)-feet; so long as the scale is an increment of ten (10) feet and

is sufficiently clear in reflecting details of the proposed construction. Construction plans shall be
prepared on exhibits twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches and shall be bound-by-staple
en-one{d)-side. All plan sheets shall be prepared to a degree to allow for adequate review and
construction. Each page shall contain an approval block for approval from the City of Republic
PRublic- Werks-Department. The City may require additional details to be developed to establish
clarity for review and construction. The plans shall generally consist of the following:

1. Title (cover) page containing, but not limited to, the following: owner's and developer's
name, engineer of record, name of project, table of contents with page numbers, general
rules of construction, phone numbers of utility suppliers and a record of submittals and
approval blocks.

2. Street plans, sidewalk plans and profile sheets containing, but not limited to, the
following:

a.

d.

Pavement installation, widening or resurfacing improvements dimensioned and
developed in accordance with the standard typical section applicable to the
project;

Top of pavement mathematical profile grade elevations at twenty-five (25) feet
intervals on vertical curves and fifty (50) feet intervals on tangent sections for all
roadway construction. Top back of curb elevations at twenty-five (25) foot
intervals for all horizontal curves, at thirty-degree (30°) intervals for street
intersections and cul-de-sacs. Existing vertical curve elevations shall be shown at
points of extension at intervals of twenty-five (25) feet. Existing vertical curve
elevations shall be shown at points of extension at intervals of twenty-five (25)
feet. PC and PT elevations shall be indicated at all curves and intersections;
Resurfacing profile grade elevations on existing centerline and edges of pavement
at twenty-five (25) feet intervals and breaks in grade (i.e. irregularities in
pavement) and establish new centerline and edge of pavement profiles; and
Existing and proposed grades at the centerline and left and right back of curb.

3. Pavement striping, marking and signage plan containing, but not limited to, the following:

a.
b.
C.

Location, type of markings and signage prescribed;

The type of materials used; and

The method for installation. The plan shall be based and designed on the Manual
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

4. Grading, erosion and sediment control plan containing, but not limited to, the following:

a.

Finished contours shall be shown to the limits of the project_for the entire site,
establishing the desired (planned) flow of all on-site stormwater in connection
with planned streets, sidewalks, stormwater ditches, pipes and structures; and
Location and composition of silt fences, construction entrances, catch basins and
related temporary structures and devices to prevent erosion, siltation and
nuisances to adjacent properties, storm sewers and streets, and a delineation
showing limits of disurbance.

5. Sanitary sewer plans and profile sheets containing, but not limited to, the following:

a.

Profiles establishing the class and size of pipe, invert elevations, grade, distance
between manholes and minimum distance from other proposed or existing
utilities. Profile sheets shall accurately depict the elevation, size and material type
of intersecting proposed or existing utilities;

Item 6.

56




Item 6.

b. Plans establishing the exact location, class and size of service lines; and

c. Plan and profiles establishing lift stations and related components of the system.
Site development details and requirements shall be provided and referenced in
accordance with the Construction Specifications for Public Improvements.

6. Water plans containing, but not limited to, the following:

a. Plan view of the proposed system, including class of pipe and size in relation to
the back of curb, including fire hydrants, gate valves, blow-off assemblies, service
lines and meter pits, etc.; and

b. Profile drawings;submitted-atthe-diseretion-oftheCityshall accurately depicting
the elevation, size and material type of intersecting proposed or existing utilities.

7. Additional submittals containing, but not limited to, the following forms, documents and
exhibits intending to parallel the provisions of the Missouri Department of Natural
Resources including specific information for determining the most efficient and cost-
effective manner in which to extend public utilities:

a. A copy of the application for the Missouri Department of Natural Resources
Request for Extension of Sanitary Sewer and Public Drinking Water. The
completed and executed document shall be retained by the City;

b. Sanitary sewer engineering report containing a letter of transmittal from the
design engineer summarizing the facilities, a discussion on the design criteria and
assumptions used, hydraulic and BOD loading calculations, an opinion as to the
conformity of the proposed sewer extension with the City of Republic Master Plan
and discussion on facility sizing in regards to future development. If a lift station
is proposed, the engineering report shall include a feasibility study for alternative
facilities (gravity sewer) and the potential for retirement of the proposed lift
station;

c. Water engineering report containing a letter of transmittal from the design
engineer summarizing the facilities, a discussion on the design criteria and
assumptions used, a hydraulic analysis demonstrating domestic and fire flow
conditions, an opinion as to the conformity of the proposed extension with the
City of Republic Water Master Plan and discussion on facility sizing in regards to
future development;

d. Easements for all proposed_drainage, sewer and water extensions located
outside previously existing easements or right-of-way, to be dedicated via a final
plat, must be accompanied by draft instruments for the formal dedication of
temporary construction and permanent easements. Depending upon the number
of land-owners and the complexity of the proposed sewer extension, the City may
require a property owner's exhibit accompanied by an opinion of title as issued
by a recognized title company; and

e. Cost estimate indicating an engineer's statement of probable cost for the
construction of the proposed main extension. If a sewer lift station or water
pressure control facilities are proposed, estimated operating costs for ten (10)
years shall be included.

8. Storm drainage, storm sewer plan and profile sheet containing, but not limited to, the
following:

a. Drainage plansindicating all existing and proposed storm sewer lines, inlet boxes,
manholes, basins, swales, watercourses, culverts and other underground or at-
grade structures in the vicinity of construction and immediately adjacent thereto.

57




Pipe classes, sizes, grades, inverts, box openings and related structure details shall
also be established and indicated on the plan sheets; and

b. Grading details pertaining to site development shall be shown in plan or on cross-
section sheets. Details shall be shown with respect to existing and proposed
contours, normally at two (2) foot intervals.

9. Detention plan containing, but not limited to, the following: detention plans, elevations,
dimensions, weir elevations and cross-sections, low-flow channels, pipe sizes, discharge
and dissipation structures.

10. Record drawings. One (1) record copy of all drawings, specifications and addenda
addressing public improvements shall be maintained by the developer's contractor and
by the City's Construction Inspector in good order and annotated to show all changes
made during construction. Upon completion of the work, these record documents will be

delivered to the engineer of record who shall provide eepies—efthese-documents—te
includereproducible-copiesand-electroniccopiesAs-Built Plans as a digital copy (in pdf),

and a drawing file (dwg) or other approved format of digital CAD files of the revised
drawings, to the City at no cost.

410.220 Inspection And Acceptance Of Subdivision Improvements

A.

Certification By Project Engineer. In accordance with the “Censtruction-SpecificationsforPublic
tmprevements— “Standard Specifications and Details for Water and Sewer Construction, City of

Republic, Missouri”, and the “Standards for Stormwater Management and Design Criteria
Manual”, all improvements required by this Chapter shall be inspected by the developer's
engineer, or his/her agent, and certified in writing to the City as having been completed, except
for improvements made under jurisdiction of other public agencies, in which case engineers or
inspectors of each agency will make the necessary inspections. Where inspections are made by
other agencies, the Engineer shall be given written reports of each final inspection.

Inspection By The City. In addition to inspection and certification by the Project Engineer, the City
shall provide inspection of all phases of construction to field verify that the location of all
infrastructure installed are in coordination with submitted as-built plans.

Compliance With Standards. The developer shall bear the final responsibility for the plans,
construction drawings and the installation, construction and inspection of all required
improvements according to provisions of this Chapter and to standards and specifications of
variousapplicable public agencies.

Acceptance. Approval of installation and construction of improvements by the Project Engineer
shall not constitute acceptance by the City of the improvements for dedication purposes.
Acceptance shall be established by approval of all related City departments and the approval by
all outside public agencies, including, but not limited to, County, State or Federal Governments.
Site Cleanup. The developer shall be responsible for removal of all equipment, material and
general construction debris from the subdivision and from any lot, street or public way or therein
or adjacent thereto. Dumping such debris into sewers, adjacent property or other land in the City
is also prohibited. Burning of debris is prohibited unless a permit is obtained from the MoDNR.

Article 410-V Major Subdivision -- Final Plat

410.230 Application For Final Plat

The developer shall submit a completed application and applicable fees as provided for in the fee schedule
found in Section 805.050, a completed Final Plat checklist, final inspection fees, sign installation fee, a

Item 6.

58



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.220_Inspection_And_Acceptance_Of_Subdivision_Improvements
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Article_410-V_Major_Subdivision_--_Final_Plat
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.230_Application_For_Final_Plat

digital copy, and a minimum of threefive (35) copies of the proposed Final Plat or more, as required by
theCity-PlannerBUILDS Department staff, to the BUILDS Department Republic Community-Development
Department at least twenty (20) workmg days prlor to the meeting of the Clty Council at which the pIat is
to be considered for approval.-A-Fi !

: I E the City Council's Praliminar: B .

410.240 Review Procedures

The City-PlannerBUILDS Department shall determine if the submittal is complete, and if so, transmit the
same to the City Clerk in adequate time for inclusion on the agenda for the_City Council's next meeting. If
the City-Planner-Community-DevelopmentDirectororCity-EngineerBUILDS Department staff reviews the
application and plat and finds that it is incomplete or that the Minimum Required Improvements are not
completed, then City-PlannerBUILDS Department staff shall so notify the applicant in writing and shall
note any deficiencies. Once all deficiencies have been addressed and the final plat is signed by the owner,
sealed by the surveyor of record and all others required herein, the plat will be forwarded to the City
Council for approval by general ordinance, prepared by the City Attorney.

410.250 Minimum Required Improvements

A. The owner or developer is required to have all subdivision improvements, including sidewalks,
completed prior to the filing of the final plat. In lieu of the final completion of said improvements
before the plat is recorded, the owner or developer erotherpersonshall enter into a Developer's

Agreementwho-agrees with the Clty to make the public |mprovements-9n—behah‘—9f—t-he—ewner—er

ethe#appreprete—see*my—agreeﬂenkﬁepeertan—nﬂprevementsfmanual securltv wrth the
approval of the Grty—Attemey—and—the—Gmy—Ad-mmstraterCIty Council of the City of Republic;.whieh

A ; The financial security will
insure to the Clty that the improvements will be completed by the owner or developer.

1. Improvements related to ensuring public safety within the development must be
completed and accepted prior to the filing of the final plat. All other improvements must
be completed within ere{d)yrearaftertherecordingofthefinal-platthe terms of the
Developer's Agreement. The-Birector-of Public-Werks-BUILDS Administrator, or their
designee, may require that certain improvements such as storm sewers, off-site

improvements and basic improvements necessary for the provision of public health and
safety be made and refuse to accept security for such improvements when they
determine the |mprovements are necessary for the protectlon of adjacent property or of
the general public.

estmate—by—the—l;epaﬁmem—ef—llubl-r&\#erks— The Clty Attorney and Clty Admlnlstrator
acting in conjunction, may at any time during the period of such bond accept a
substitution of principal or sureties on the bond or a substitution of a letter of credit,
escrow or other approved security agreement. The amount of the corporate surety bond,
escrow agreement or other appropriate security agreement shall not be less than the
estimated cost of the improvements, said estimate of cost to be made by the BUILDS
Department-ef-RPublic-Werks. The City may defer at the time of final approval, subject to
appropriate conditions, the provision of any and all such improvements as, in its
judgment, are not appropriate because of incompatible grades, future planning,

Item 6.

59



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.240_Review_Procedures
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.250_Minimum_Required_Improvements

Item 6.

inadequate or lack of connecting facilities or other reasons. As a condition of deferral, the
owner or developer shall pay their share of the costs of the future improvements to the
City prior to the signing of the final plat or the owner or developer may post an
appropriate security approved in the same manner as stated above which shall insure
completion of said deferred improvements upon demand by the City. If the
improvements are not completed within the specified time, the City Council may use the
funds from said security, or any necessary portion thereof, to complete the same.

2. The release or reduction of said corporate surety bond, escrow agreement or other
appropriate security agreement shall be in accordance with the following:

a. When a petition for improvements by the tax bill method is filed for the
improvements of this Section and when said petition has passed the required
remonstrance petition assuring the City that all improvements will be installed,
said bond or agreements posted by the owner or developer to insure the City the
improvements of this Section may be released and returned to the owner or
developer.

b. The BUILDS Administrator BirecterofPublic\Werks-with the approval of the City
Administrator, may release or reduce said bond or agreements posted by the
owner or developer to insure to the City the improvements of this Section when
they have he—has determined that all required improvements have been
satisfactorily completed and the owner or developer's engineer or surveyor has
certified to said Administrator, through submission of a detailed "as-built" survey
plat of the subdivision indicating location, dimensions, materials and other
information required by said Administrator, that the layout of the line and grade
of all public improvements are in accordance with construction plans for the
subdivision and that the improvements have been completed, are ready for
dedication to the local government and are free and clear of any and all liens and
encumbrances.

c. The BUILDS Administrator-Birectorof-Public-Werks with the approval of the City
Administrator may reduce, upon request, said bond or agreements when he has
made the findings and received the information required in the above Subsection
(b), but such reduction shall not exceed the ratio that the cost of completed
improvements bears to the total estimated cost of total public improvements for
the plat.

3. The City, its boards, commission and agents shall withhold all City improvements or
services of whatsoever nature, including the furnishing of sewer, water, electricity and
gas, from all additions which have not been approved as provided by these regulations;
and further, no permits shall be issued by the_BUILDS—Community—Development
Department of the City of Republic on any property which has not been approved as
provided by these regulations.

4. Provided however, the improvements and permits withheld above shall not be withheld
by reason of the conditions therein stated when the City finds the improvements are
necessary to comply with other ordinances of the City of Republic which carry a penalty
for failure to comply-

410.260 Effect Of Final Plat Approval
Final Plat approval shall confer upon the developer the conditional right that the City Council will not
change the general terms and conditions under which the approval was granted. Approval of the Final

60



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.260_Effect_Of_Final_Plat_Approval

Plat, by general ordinance, and the subsequent recording of the Final Plat shall constitute the subdivision
of the property into lots and the creation and dedication of right-of-way and utility easements.

410.270 Monuments

A. All monuments shall be setin the ground at least to the depth of the minimum length given, unless
they are encased in concrete. The precise position of corner monuments shall be marked by a
point on a cap and the cap inscribed with the registration number o—f the land surveyor
responsible for placement or the corporate registration number or name of the company.
Monumentation shall comply with the following at a minimum.

1. Permanent monuments. Two (2) permanent monuments per subdivision block, adjacent
to or located in the right-of-way.

a. Minimum diameter of five-eights (5/8) inch by twenty-four (24) inches length,
steel or coated steel rebar or similar bar.

b. Monuments shall have a permanently attached cap of the same or of a dissimilar
metal if the metals are insulated with a plastic insert to reduce corrosion.

2. Semi-permanent monuments. Located at each lot corner of each platted lot in the
subdivision.

a. Minimum diameter of one-half (1/2) inch by eighteen (18) inches in length, steel
or coated steel rebar or similar bar.
b. Monuments shall have a plastic or aluminum cap.

3. Elevation—markersBenchmarks. For subdivisions platted in the vicinity of floodplains,
ponds, lakes, creeks and other major drainage features, a permanent_benchmark
elevationmarker shall be established at location(s) required by the City to reference and
verify minimum finished floor elevations as published on the As-Built Plans.

410.280 Existing Or Proposed Features To Be Shown On The Final Plat

A. Prior to approval of the Final Plat, the City-Plannerand-theCityEngineerBUILDS Department shall

review the Final Plat for conformance to the Preliminary Plat and to determine that the plat shows
or establishes the following information, which shall be in substantial conformity to the
Preliminary Plat.

1. Name and code. The name of the subdivision, phase or addition as provided on the
Preliminary Plat.

2. Date of preliminary plat approval. The date and name in which the Preliminary Plat was
approved as shall be indicated on the Final Plat. In addition, any ordinance, resolution or
other bill passed by the City Council or Planning and Zoning Commission that relates to
the subdivision or particular phase, shall be included on the plat.

3. Owners of record. The names and addresses of the owner(s) of record, developer(s),
engineer, and/or surveyor responsible for the subdivision design.

4. Vicinity map. A vicinity map at a scale of four hundred (400) feet or more to the inch shall
be drawn on the Final-preliminary Plat. The map shall indicate:

a. Section, Township, Range.

b. Adjacent City limits, other corporation or ad hoc district lines, such as school or
sewer districts, etc.

c. The nearest existing highways or thoroughfares, streets and alleys in neighboring
subdivisions or unplatted property.

Item 6.

61



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.270_Monuments
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.280_Existing_Or_Proposed_Features_To_Be_Shown_On_The_Final_Plat

10.

Abutting owners. The name of adjacent subdivisions and the names of record owners of
adjacent parcels of unplatted land.

Boundary lines. The boundary lines, accurate in scale, of the tract to be subdivided.
Streets — other features. The location, widths and names of all existing or platted streets,
right-of-way or other public ways within or adjacent to the tract, and other important
features such as watercourses; railroad lines; corporation and township lines, utility lines,
etc.

Proposed design — street, drainage, etc.

a. The layout, names and widths of right-of-way, streets, alleys and easements
serving stormwater, sewer, water or other utilities within the property being
subdivided.

b. Where additional right of way is required along an existing road, new right of
way line(s) shall be based off of section or other adjacent aliquot part line rather
than centerline of road splits.

c. Exemptions or modifications may be made by the BUILDS Administrator or their
designee.

Proposed layout and legal description. The legal description of the entire site to be
subdivided, including-appreximate acreage in tract,; The boundary and easement lines,
locations,ard-dimensions, and bearings of newly created tracts, parcels or lots that are
part of the subdivision shall be shown on plat. The dimensions and location of all arcs,
radii, internalangles; points of curvature and tangent boundaries and other pertinent
survey information necessary-te for an accurate description and location. Survey data
shall meet_all applicable portions of the current Missouri Standards for Property
Boundary Surveys as promulgated by the Department of Agriculture, Division of

Welghts, Measures and Consumer Protection. -the—staeda%ds—p#emunlga%ed—by—theétate

Iy - AII survey datum
shall be vertically t|ed to the NAVD 88 datum and shall graphlcallv show a horizontal tie
to two subdivision corners by bearing and distance from the nearest published GRS
monument which name and/or designation number, date of adjustment and
coordinates shall be noted. If the MoDOT Real Time Network is used in lieu of a GRS
monument, then a statement to that effect shall be noted along with the Epoch of
subdivision control. Also State Plane Coordinates of at least two external boundary
corners of subdivision shall be shown. herizentally—tied—to—the—City—ofRepublic
Curvature—and-radiusCurve Data. When a_boundary, easement, lot, or street is on a
circular curve, the maincherd-ofthe centerline_data shall be shown in place or on an
included Curve Table. Curve data shown shall consist of at least the following; Curve
number/name if table is used; Delta or central angle; Radius; Arc length; Chord length

and bearing.
a. When curved lot lines are concentric to the centerline of street it shall be noted

as such on plat.
b. Non-tangent curves shall be noted in place or in Curve Table and shall show
Central Angle rather than Delta; Bearing from radius point to point of curvature

and all other curve components mentioned above.

Item 6.

62




Item 6.

11. Lot information. The plat shall indicate the area, proposed setbacks, proposed and
existing easements, and exact location and distance of all structures and other physical
improvements in relation to proposed lot lines.

12. Zoning. Zoning boundary lines and proposed use of property.

13. North point, etc. Title, bar scale, north arrow, basis of bearing, date of preparation, and
date of each successive revision.

14. Floodplains, etc. The extent and location of floodplains, floodways or other waterways of
record; elevations of which, shall be based on applicable Flood Insurance Studies, Flood
Insurance Rate Maps, Flood Boundary and Floodway Maps.

15. Location of model home. The location of the model home or spec. house, if applicable, as
it occupies a platted lot in the subdivision.

16. Commercial and industrial subdivisions. Final Plats—fer—industrial—er—commercial
subdivisions shall delineate who will be responsible for addressing open space,
landscaping and buffer yard requirements.

17. Notes and related information. Notes pertaining to particular items such as:

a. Access limitations;

Total area;

Total number of lots;

Smallest/largest lot;

Replat information;

Source of title;

Recording information for covenants and restrictions.

b.
C.
d.
e.
f.
g.

19. Sinkholes. The extent and location of sinkholes must be shown, the location of which
shall be based on the latest data from the Greene County Assessor’s Department, a
report conducted by a Geotechnical Engineer, or a source approved by the BUILDS
Department Administrator or their designee. Any sinkhole and its associated thirty-
foot “No Build” buffer zone must be entirely contained within a common lot.

20. Dedications of Off Site Right of Way and Easements to the City All right of way for streets
and easements for proposed drainage, sewer and water extensions located outside
existing easements or right-of-way, shall be dedicated to the City via formal legal
instruments. This shall include dedication for streets, temporary construction, and
permanent easements and shall be shown and or noted on Final Plat. Depending upon
the number of landowners and the complexity of the proposed street or utility
extensions the City may require a property owner's exhibit accompanied by an opinion
of title as issued by a recognized title company.

410.290 ProfessionalRegistered Land Surveyor's Certificate
A certification shall be included on the plat by a registeredProfessional iLand sSurveyor to the effect that
the plat represents a survey made by him/her, and that the locations of all required survey monuments;

63




installed-orto-be-installed; are correctly shown thereon. The months and year during which the survey
was made shall be shown. The certification block shall substantially conform to the following.

That |, do hereby declare that this plat was prepared under my
supervision from an actual survey of the land herein described prepared by
dated and signed by P.L.S. No.

and that the corner monuments and lot corner pins shown herein were placed under the

personal supervision of P.L.S. No. in accordance all applicable

portions of the current Missouri Standards for Property Boundary Surveys as promulgated by the
Department of Agriculture, Division of Weights, Measures and Consumer Protection.

Date Prepared

Signature:

Missouri Professional Land Surveyor No.

Date:

410.300 Owner's Certificate

A signed statement, substantially conforming to the following shall be included on the plat, which certifies
that he/she had title to the land being subdivided and all access rights as represented on the plat are
hereby dedicated. This certification block shall include a notary blank.

OWNER(S) DEDICATION

As owner(s) I/We, Owner(s) Name have caused the land described on this plat to be surveyed, divided,
mapped, and all access rights reserved and dedicated as represented on the plat. I/We hereby dedicate,
grant, and convey right-of-way and easements shown hereon to the City of Republic. Furthermore, |/We,
certify that there are no suits, actions, liens, or trusts on the property conveyed herein, and warrant
generally and specially the property conveyed for public use and will execute such further assurances as
may be required.

Name of Owner(s) and/or Subdivider

Date:

410.310 Certificate Of Taxes Paid

The plat shall contain a certification block for the City and County Official to the effect that there are no
unpaid taxes and unpaid special assessments due and payable at the time of plat approval. The
certification block shall substantially conform to the following:

CERTIFICATE OF TAXES PAID There are no unpaid taxes due and payable at the time of plat approval and
no unpaid special assessments, whether or not due and payable at the time of plat approval on any of the
lands included in this plat, and all outstanding taxes and special assessments have been paid on all
property dedicated to public use.

Parcel Number

Item 6.

64



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.300_Owner's_Certificate
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.310_Certificate_Of_Taxes_Paid

County Collection Official

Date

410.320 City Council Certificate
A statement of approval by the City Council indicating the date and ordinance number in which Final Plat
was accepted and approved. The certification block shall substantially conform to the following.

APPROVAL BY THE CITY COUNCIL

I, , City Clerk of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, Do hereby certify that the Plat of

was presented to, accepted and approved by the City Council of said City of Republic, and
approved by General Ordinance No. on the day of ,
20

City Clerk

Date

410.330 Compliance With Land Use Regulations Certification, Certificate Of Compliance With Zoning
And Subdivision Regulations

The Plat shall include a signature block establishing conformance to the Land Use Regulations adopted by
the City of Republic.

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH ZONING AND  SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS |,
, City Planner of the City of Republic, Missouri, do hereby certify on
the day of , 20 , the Final Plat of
conforms to the City of Republic Land Use Regulations, in accordance with Title IV of the Republic Code
of Ordinances.

410.340 Recorder's Office
Atitle block shall be included on the plat for the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, Greene County, Missouri
substantially conforming to the following.

IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE I, , Recorder of Deeds, Greene County, Missouri,

do hereby certify that the within instrument of writing was on the day of ,20

, duly filed for record and is recorded in the records in this office in book

page in testimony whereof, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my

official seal at my office in Springfield, Missouri, this day of
, 20

Recorder of Deeds

Date

410.350 Final Submittal

Item 6.

65



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.320_City_Council_Certificate
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.330_Compliance_With_Land_Use_Regulations_Certification,_Certificate_Of_Compliance_With_Zoning_And_Subdivision_Regulations
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.330_Compliance_With_Land_Use_Regulations_Certification,_Certificate_Of_Compliance_With_Zoning_And_Subdivision_Regulations
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.340_Recorder's_Office
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.350_Final_Submittal

A. Final submittal of the Final Plat shall be prepared on two (2) reproducible original (mylars) 24" X
36" or those dimensions required by the County Recorder of Deeds. The following shall be
submitted in addition to the original.

All off-site easements and right-of-way deeds.
As-built drawings as described in 410.210 of the phase being approved.

Pw

5. Permits, on file, from MoDNR for authorization to connect and place the water and sewer
lines in service.

6. Copy of private and restrictive covenants to be recorded.

Electronic copies of the subdivision plat, infrastructure or as-built plans, etc.

8. The community-develepment BUILDS Department staff may require additional elements
to incorporate the final plat to the City map or to supply related government agencies
with plats and reproducible prints, as needed.

~

410.355 Maintenance After Approval

The developer shall maintain and keep in repair all public infrastructure and detention areas for a period
of one (1) year from the date the constructed improvements are approved by the City. To guarantee this
maintenance, an acceptable maintenance bond, letter of credit or other acceptable security shall be
provided in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the contract price of the improvements against defects in
workmanship and materials for the above-mentioned one (1) year period. The bond, letter of credit or
security shall be filed with the City and be from a surety company licensed to do business in the State of
Missouri and in a form to be approved by the City Attorney.

Article 410-VI General Principles Of Design And Minimum Requirements For The Layout Of Subdivision

410.360 Functional Classification Of Streets
As defined in this Chapter, the following terms are used as follows:

EXPRESSWAY
A limited-access highway with some grade crossings and signals at major intersections intended for high-
volume, moderate to high speed traffic across the metropolitan area with minimal access to adjacent land.

FREEWAY

A fully controlled access highway with grade-separated interchanges at major thoroughfares. Intended
for high-volume, high-speed traffic movement between cities and across the metropolitan area and not
intended to provide direct access to adjacent land.

PRIMARY ARTERIAL

A street primarily intended to provide for high-volume, moderate-speed traffic from one part of the City
to another or between major activity centers. Providing access to abutting property is a secondary
function and access points should be controlled.

SECONDARY ARTERIAL

Item 6.

66



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.355_Maintenance_After_Approval
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Article_410-VI_General_Principles_Of_Design_And_Minimum_Requirements_For_The_Layout_Of_Subdivision
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.360_Functional_Classification_Of_Streets

A street which supplements and feeds the principal arterial system and is intended for moderate-volume,
moderate-speed traffic. Access to abutting property is a secondary function and access points should be
partially controlled.

COLLECTOR

A street which collects and distributes traffic to and from Local Streets and Arterial Streets. Collector
Streets are intended for moderate volume, low speed and short length through trips. The main function
of a Collector Street is to move traffic from Local Streets to the Arterial System. A secondary function of a
Collector Street is to provide access to Local Streets.

LOCAL STREET
A street intended to provide access to abutting property while its secondary function is to provide traffic
flow and movement. Local Streets, which comprise the largest percentage of total City street mileage, are

designed for low-volume, low-speed traffic. Buring-the-plattingprocess-atocalStreet-may-be-designated

410.370 Design Standards -- Streets And Sidewalks

A. Streets shall be designed in accordance with the latest addition of the American Association of State
Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets.

B. Sidewalks shall be 5' minimum width and conform to the latest standards identified by the
American's with Disabilities Act (ADA).

410.380 Street Grades And Curves

A. The grades of streets shall not exceed the following except that, where unusual or exceptional
conditions exist, the Planning Commission may modify these requirements:

1. Arterials. Five percent (5%) maximum.

2. Collector streets. Seven percent (7%) maximum.

3. Local streets, service drives and alleys. Ten percent (10%).

4. Pedestrian ways or crosswalks. Twelve percent (12%), unless steps of an acceptable
design are to be constructed.

5. Minimum grade. In no event shall the minimum grade of any street be less than seventy-
five hundredths percent (.75%) with lengths not to exceed two hundred (200) feet.

6. Changes in street grades. All changes in street grades in excess of one percent (1%) shall
be connected by vertical curves of a minimum length equal to fifteen (15) times the
algebraic difference in the rate of grade for highways, thoroughfares and parkways; and
one-half (%) of this minimum for all other streets.

7. Curvature of centerline._shall be designed in accordance with AASHTO's A Policy on
Geometric Design of highways and Streets-Fheradiiofcurvature-onthecenterlineshall

reibelessthan-the-fellaving:

410.390 Easements To Be Granted To The City

Item 6.

67



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.370_Design_Standards_--_Streets_And_Sidewalks
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.380_Street_Grades_And_Curves
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.390_Easements_To_Be_Granted_To_The_City

A. Utility easements shall be provided adjacent to all lots and rights-of-way, the following minimum
utility easements are required.
1. Utility easements adjacent to right-of-way: ten (10) feet.
2. Easements for off-site utilities: fifteen (15) feet.
3. Easements for all other utilities: fifteen (15) feet.
4. Temporary construction easements: sixty (60) feet.

410.395 Location Of Certain Public Utilities

A. The location of public utility easements shall be compliant with the following requirements:

1. Proposed public utilities are prohibited in any location the City Engineer determines
interferes with the operation or maintenance of any of the City's utility infrastructure or
will otherwise interfere with the rights and reasonable convenience of property owners.

2. Proposed public utilities located in residential subdivisions to be dedicated, owned,
and/or maintained by the City of Republic are prohibited in the rear or side yard;
exceptions may be granted by the City Engineer if no other alternative is available.

410.400 Access Management

A. Freeways, Expressways, Primary Arterials.

1. When subdividing land, all parcels shall have direct frontage on a dedicated street to
obtain access. Access to property via ingress/ egress easements shall not be allowed.

2. When subdividing land adjacent to Freeways, Expressways and Primary Arterials, direct
access from parcels to the arterial shall be prohibited. Access shall be provided to
Freeways, Expressways and Primary Arterials via Local Streets, Collector Streets and
Secondary Arterial Streets.

3. If the land adjacent to the Freeway, Expressway or Primary Arterial is zoned for
commercial land uses, a Secondary Circulation System shall be constructed according to
the Major Thoroughfare Plan to control access and maintain traffic flow. The Secondary
Circulation System shall be located at least four hundred forty (440) feet from the highway
and run parallel to the highway thus creating reverse frontage lots.

4. In the case of infill development along Freeways, Expressways and Primary Arterials,
where direct access cannot be prevented because of prior platting or existing
development patterns, joint access driveways shall be constructed.

5. In the Site Plan review process, commercial property along Freeways, Expressways and
Primary Arterials shall be required to construct Internal Circulation Systems between
parcels to provide access management to the Arterial Street.

B. Collector Streets And Secondary Arterial Streets.

1. When subdividing land adjacent to Secondary Arterial Streets and Collector Streets, direct
access from parcels to the arterial or collector shall be prohibited.

2. If the land adjacent to the Collector Street or Secondary Arterial Street is zoned for
commercial land uses, a Secondary Circulation System shall be constructed according to
the Major Thoroughfare Plan to control access and maintain traffic flow. The Secondary
Circulation System shall be located at least two hundred twenty (220) feet from a
Secondary Arterial and one hundred twenty (120) feet from a Collector and shall run
parallel to the highway thus creating reverse frontage lots.

Item 6.

68



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.395_Location_Of_Certain_Public_Utilities
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.400_Access_Management

3. In the case of infill development where direct access cannot be prevented because of
prior platting or existing development patterns, the construction of turnaround drives
shall be provided.

C. Access Restrictions by Classification of Roadway
1. All Distances are centerline-to-centerline. If roadway is owned/operated by another
Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ) then follow their access spacing guidelines.
a. Collector
(1) Full access roadway intersections spacing shall be a minimum distance
of 660"
(2) Commercial driveway spacing shall be a minimum distance of 160’
b. Secondary Arterial
(1) Full access roadway intersections spacing shall be a minimum distance
of 660"
(2) Commercial driveway spacing shall be a minimum distance of 210’
c. Primary Arterial
(1) Full access roadway intersections spacing shall be a minimum distance

of 1/4 mile.

(2) Commercial driveway spacing shall be a minimum distance of 330’

410.410 Street Layout

The street layout of the subdivision shall be in conformity with the adopted Transportation Plan. The
design and arrangement of streets in the subdivision shall provide for the continuation of streets in
adjacent subdivisions, where such extension is not prohibited by topographic conditions. Local Streets
shall be laid out so as to discourage their use by through traffic. Streets shall be arranged in proper relation
to topography so as to result in usable lots and safe and reasonable grades, both for the streets and
driveways intersecting therewith.

410.420 Intersections

Proposed Collector Streets and Secondary Arterial Streets shall intersect one another at ninety-degrees
(90°). The street centerline shall never be less than eighty-five degrees (85°) when a Collector Street or
Secondary Arterial Street is involved. The street centerline should never be less than eighty degrees (80°)
when a Local Street is involved. Four-way intersections shall be created for minor interior streets. Street
jogs with centerline offsets of less than one hundred twenty-five (125) feet shall be prohibited on all types
of streets.

410.430 Private Roads And Gated Developments

A. The Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council may approve a plan or plat for a
gated/private development if the proposal is found to meet acceptable planning and design
guidelines and shall furthermore meet the following:

1. The proposed development shall not adversely affect the adopted Major Thoroughfare
Plan, existing or planned neighborhoods, rights-of-way, and/or public infrastructure.

2. The proposal must provide adequate information relating to restrictive covenants, bylaws
and contingencies to ensure the development will be sustainable and self sufficient.

3. Private or gated developments shall meet the general principles of design and minimum
requirements for the layout of subdivision in the City of Republic; all improvements shall
be constructed to City standards.

410.440 Blocks

Item 6.

69



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.410_Street_Layout
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.420_Intersections
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.430_Private_Roads_And_Gated_Developments
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.440_Blocks

Item 6.

A. The length of blocks in a subdivision shall be designed to be more than five hundred (500) feet
and shall not exceed one thousand five hundred (1,500) feet as measured from centerlines of
streets.

B. The width of blocks in a subdivision shall be designed to provide two (2) tiers of lots, except where
the lots back onto a major street, natural feature, subdivision boundary or other feature or facility
that requires reverse frontage.

410.450 Dead-End Streets And Cul-De-Sacs

A. Except as otherwise provided herein, temporary dead-end streets shall be approved where the
layout of the subdivision requires streets to be built to property lines for future development of
the street system. A temporary cul-de-sac will be required on roads more than one hundred fifty
(150) feet in length. When the staging of development allows the developer to stage the
construction of streets in the development.

B. Dead-end streets of reasonable length (normally not over five hundred (500) feet) may be
approved where necessitated by topography or where, in the opinion of the Plarringand-Zoning
CommissionBUILDS Administrator or their designee, they are appropriate for the type of
development contemplated. At the end of all said streets, cul-de-sacs shall be built.

C. Cul-de-sac streets may be allowed if the street does not exceed five hundred (500) feet in length
measured from the centerlines and the closed end shall have a turnaround encompassing a
minimum right-of-way diameter of one hundred (100) feet.

D. Sidewalks constructed on dead-end streets shall be extended to the end of the street and around
the entire radius of the cul-de-sac.

410.460 Street To Extend To Boundary Lines

A. Proposed streets shall be extended to the boundary lines of the tract to be subdivided, unless
prevented by topography or other physical conditions or unless, in the opinion of the Planning
and Zoning Commission, such extension is not necessary or desirable for the future development
of adjacent tracts.

B. Where appropriate to the design, proposed streets shall be continuous and in alignment with
existing, planned or platted streets with which they are to connect. It is not the intent of these
regulations to require that streets be designed in a grid-fashion. Streets shall be designed to
accommodate natural obstacles, such as known sinkholes, floodplains, pipelines, streams or other
waterways.

C. Local streets shall connect with surrounding streets where necessary to permit the convenient
movement of traffic between residential neighborhoods or to facilitate access to neighborhoods
by emergency service vehicles or for other sufficient reasons, but connections shall not be
permitted where the effect would be to encourage the use of such streets by substantial through
traffic.

410.470 Sidewalks And Greenways

A. Unless otherwise approved, sidewalks shall be 5 feet in width and required on both sides of all
existing and new Secondary Arterial Streets and Collector Streets and one (1) side of all existing
and new Local Streets, with the following exception:

1. The Planningand-Zening-CommissionBUILDS Administrator or their designee may deem

it unnecessary to require sidewalks on interior streets in industrial subdivisions.

70



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.450_Dead-End_Streets_And_Cul-De-Sacs
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.460_Street_To_Extend_To_Boundary_Lines
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.470_Sidewalks_And_Greenways

Item 6.

B. The Planning—and—Zeoning—CommissionCity's Adopted Plans may require greenways along
Secondary Arterials-according-to-the-Citys TransportationPlan.

410.480 Water Supply

A. Where a public water supply main is reasonably accessible, in the judgment of the Planning and
Zoning Commission, the subdivision shall be provided with a looped water distribution system
adequate to serve the area being platted, including a connection for each lot and appropriately
spaced flre hydrants in accordance with requirements set out below and in conformance with
1 j i —Ci ic"”Standard Specifications
and Details for Water and Sewer Construction, City of Republic, Missouri” on file at the offices
of the City of Republic-Publie-Werks BUILDS Department and incorporated herein by reference.
All water system plans shall be designed and installed in accordance with the City's Water System
Master Plan. Main extensions, upgrades and related looping required by the plan shall be done
so at the expense of the developer.

B. The minimum size of a water main previding-fire-protectionand-servingfire-hydrants shall be six
(6) inches in diameter. Larger mains shall be required, if necessary, to allow withdrawal of the
required fire flow while maintaining the minimum residual pressure of twenty (20) pounds per
square inch throughout the dlstrlbutlon system or to conform to the City's Water System Master

mains shall be extended to adjacent property lines for future extension and looping.
C. Fire Hydrants.

1. Fire hydrants should be located in accordance with National Fire Protection guidelines in
reference to fire flow requirements in heavy use areas and residential but shall be placed
not more than five hundred (500) feet apart in heavy residential areas and not more than
three hundred (300) feet apart in heavy business areas.

2. Fire hydrants located in heavy traffic areas, such as alleys or parking lots, shall be provided
with protection against collision.

3. Fire Hydrants shall be painted “safety yellow”.

410.490 Bridges And Culverts -- Closed Storm Sewers

A. Bridges And Culverts. Bridges, box culverts or concrete pipe culverts shall be provided where
continuous streets or alleys cross watercourses in accordance with the design requirements of
Section-440-650-Fach-structureshall-be-designed-to-carry-H20-leadingsthe Adopted Plans of the
City using construction materials and installation procedures conforming with “Censtruction
Specificationsfor-Publictmprovements,City-of Republic~”Standard Specifications and Details for
Water and Sewer Construction, City of Missouri” and the “Standards for Stormwater
Management and Design Criteria Manual”, on file at the offices of the City of Republic-Publie
Werks BUILDS Department and incorporated herein by reference.

B. Closed Storm Sewers.

1. Closed storm sewers shall be designed fer—H-20leadings—and—shal—conform—with

“ConstructionSpecificationsforPublicimprovements; City of Republic’in accordance and
shall conform to the Adopted Plans of the City on file at the offices of the City of Republic

Public Werks BUILDS Department and incorporated herein by reference.

2. Closed storm sewers shall be designed at and constructed to grades such that the velocity
therein shall not be less than three (3) feet per second nor greater than twelve (12) feet
per second_during rain events.

71



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.480_Water_Supply
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.490_Bridges_And_Culverts_--_Closed_Storm_Sewers

3. Closed storm sewers shall extend to the furthest downstream point of development with
consideration given to velocities and to providing discharge energy dissipaters to prevent
erosion and scouring along downstream properties.

410.500 Public Sanitary Sewer

Where a public sanitary sewer main is reasonably accessible, in the opinion of the Planning Commission,
the subdivision shall be provided with a complete sanitary sewer system connected with such sewer
mains, at a grade not less than one-half of one percent (.5%), unless approved by the City Engineer,

including a lateral connection for each lot. The sewer system shall be designed to extend to adjacent
property lines for future development. Such system and connection shall comply with the regulations of
the Missouri Department of Natural Resources and to the regulations established by the City of Republic.

410.520 Private Sewage Collection

Where no sewers are accessible and no plans for a sewer system have been prepared and approved, the
developer shall either install a sewage collection and disposal system in accordance with the requirements
of Fitle M- Utilities-and/orthe City of Republic and the latest adopted Building Code.

410.530 Planting
All landscaped strips, parkways and screening areas dedicated to the public shall be graded, seeded and

planted and maintained in accordance with City regulations. Where shrubs are required for the purpose
of screening, location, specimen, density and other pertinent features shall be in accordance with the
City's regulations.

410.540 Street Name Signs

All informational and regulatory signs, including, but not limited to, street name signs, stop signs, etc.,
shall be installed in accordance with the regulations of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices
(MUTCD) and City of Republic at the expense of the developer.

410.550 Utility Service

Where practical, easements for underground conduits for utility lines shall be provided along front, rear
and side lot lines. All utilities, including, but not limited to, electricity, telephone and cable television, shall
be buried underground for all major subdivisions.

410.560 Property Corner And Boundary Monumentation
Property monumentation and for permanent and semi-permanent monuments shall comply with the
current Missouri Minimum Standards for Property Boundary Surveys.

410.570 Final Cleanup Of Developed Lots

The owners and/or developers of all new homes, duplexes, apartments or businesses constructed shall
have thirty (30) days from the date of the completion of the structure to get all yards and lots graded and
all items of construction removed from said yards and lots within thirty (30) days from the completion of

Item 6.

72



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.500_Public_Sanitary_Sewer
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.510_Subdivision_Sanitary_Sewer
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.520_Private_Sewage_Collection
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.530_Planting
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.540_Street_Name_Signs
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.550_Utility_Service
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.560_Property_Corner_And_Boundary_Monumentation
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.570_Final_Cleanup_Of_Developed_Lots

said structure. If the owner and/or developer fails to properly grade and clean the lot and have-tsreceive
approval by the Building-tnspectorBUILDS Administrator or their designee-ferthe-City-of-Republie, then
each and every day after the thirty (30) day period shall be a separate violation of this Chapter and the
owner and/or developer shall be subject to a fine of up to one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for the
violation of this Chapter. The BuildingtaspectorBUILDS Administrator or their designee shall have, in
accordance with the latest adopted Building Code, the authority to extend this requirement at his-er
hertheir discretion.

410.580 Street Lights
A. Public street lights on—+residential local streets shall be spaced between two hundred fifty (250)

feet and three hundred fifty (350) feet apart, at street intersections and cul-de-sacs. Street light
spacing on all roads with a classification of collector or above shall be determined on a case-by-
case basis.

Wires connecting street lights in new subdivisions shall be buried underground at the expense of
the developer and in accordance with Chapter 410 Subdivision Regulations.

All poles installed in new subdivisions for the specific purpose of providing on-street lighting for
public streets shall be composed of concrete, fiberglass, steel, aluminum or other materials not
composed of wood.

The developer of the subdivision shall bear the expense associated with meeting these standards.
These requirements shall apply only to the installation of new street lights in major subdivisions
platted after approval of this Code.

Once constructed and dedicated to the City, the-Birector-of-RPublic-Werks BUILDS Administrator
is authorized to temporarily de-energize any street light until such time as construction is initiated
on a new inhabitable structure within one hundred sixty (160) feet of the location of the street
light. Street lights at street intersections and cul-de-sacs shall not be de-energized under this
provision.

Article 410-VII Stormwater Management For Public And Private Improvements

410.650 General Provisions

A.

B.

B- Authority.
1. TFhesedesign-eriteria-and-standardssetforth-herein The Stormwater Design Manual have

been has been adopted by the-Planningand-Zenirg-Commission-and-the City Council in

accordance with the procedures and authority set forth in the City of Republic.

2. Any development or grading begun after the date of passage of these criteria and
standards which does not comply with the requirements set forth hereir—in The
Stormwater Design Manual shall be deemed to be in violation of the requirements
established herein; and shall be subject to enforcement measures and penalties set forth
in Section 100.220 — General Penalty.

€ Interpretations.

1. Where any of the provisions eentainred—-herein may be unclear or ambiguous as they
pertain to a particular site or situation, interpretations of the policies, criteria and
standards set forth herein shall be made in writing by the BUILDS Administrator or their

clesignee CorrabnitReveloprentDirestar.

Item 6.

73



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.580_Street_Lights
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Article_410-VII_Stormwater_Management_For_Public_And_Private_Improvements
https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.650_General_Provisions

2.

Such written interpretations shall be kept on file for future reference for use in similar
situations and shall be incorporated in subsequent revisions for the standards, if deemed
necessary for general reference.

C. E Approvals And Permits Required.

1.

Grading permit. Storm drainage facilities may not be constructed or altered without
review and approval of the plans by the City and issuance of a Grading Permit by the City
for subdivisions or for commercial or other sites.

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) stormwater permit.

a. Provisions of the 1987 Clean Water Act require that certain stormwater
discharges obtain an NPDES stormwater permit. In Missouri, these permits are
administered by the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR).

b. Federal rules for NPDES stormwater discharges are contained in 40 CFR Parts 122,
123 and 124 of the Code of Federal Regulations. State NPDES stormwater
regulations are contained in 10 CSR 20-6.200 of the Code of State Regulations.
Additional provisions for NPDES stormwater permits for land disturbance
activities and information regarding the City of Republic General Permit for land
disturbance activities are contained in Section 410.710 of these Criteria.

c. "404" Permit.

(1) For certain activities, which involve the discharge of dredged or fill
materials into the waters of the United States a Department of the Army
permit may be required as set forth Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.
Rules for 404 permits are contained in 33 CFR Parts 320 through 330 of
the Code of Federal Regulations.

(2) Determination of applicability for Section 404 requirements are generally
made by the Kansas City or Little Rock District office of the Corps of
Engineers.

(3) A brochure regarding the Corps of Engineers regulatory program may be
obtained from the Corps offices.

D. £ Coordination With Other Jurisdictions.

1.

Where proposed storm drainage facilities are located on property adjoining to other local
government jurisdictions design of storm drainage facilities shall include provisions to
receive or discharge stormwater in accordance with the requirements of the adjoining
jurisdiction, in addition to meeting City requirements.

In these cases two-{2}-additionatsets-of-plans shall be submitted and will be forwarded to
the adjoining jurisdiction for review and comment.

No grading or construction of storm drainage facilities may commence without prior
notification of the Missouri One Call utility warning system at 1-800-DIG-RITE, as required
by law.

Item 6.

74




Item 6.

E. & Communications And Correspondence. Communications and correspondence regarding
stormwater plan review, policies, design standards, criteria or drainage complaints shall be
directed to the-City-Plannerat-the City-of Republic; P dainResulb e Miscor  EET20 Dhone:
417-732-3354BUILDS Department staff.

F. H. Ownership And Maintenance.

1. Improvements on public road right-of-way. Storm drainage improvements on public right-
of-way shall, upon acceptance of the constructed improvements, become the property
of; and shall be maintained by the City of Republic.

2. Improvements on private property.

a. Storm drainage improvements on private property shall be maintained by the
owner of the lot upon which the improvements are located or by the
Homeowners' Association for improvements located in common areas. In such
cases as an overland drainage easement is located on a private lot, the area of
the drainage easement shall not count toward the minimum square footage
required for the lot.

b. All such improvements, which serve a drainage area, shall be located in drainage
easement and the public shall have such rights of access to repair or maintain
such facilities as set forth in Section 410.680(E)(4).

410.660 Stormwater Planning And Design

75



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.660_Stormwater_Planning_And_Design

Item 6.

76




Item 6.

7



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.670_Stormwater_Runoff_Calculations

Item 6.

78




Item 6.

79




Item 6.

80

1-Houwr |2-Howr |3-Howr |4-Hour |6-Houwr




Item 6.

81

100

100

100

100

1006



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.680_Stormwater_Drainage_Structures

Item 6.

82




Item 6.

tha

richt-ofaaa\v
HEAt-O+-WaY-

e

within

Vv et

(18)

=T

aichtaan

inchac
HHERES:

CrgrrecTrT

83

12“ Et g It-tE -

6" Et gl ttE -

oy Lol

No-cross-flowpermitted

’




Item 6.

84




Item 6.

85




Item 6.

86




Item 6.

87




Item 6.

88




Item 6.

89




Item 6.

90




Item 6.

91




Item 6.

92




Item 6.

93




Item 6.

94




410.690 Stormwater Detention Design

A. Purpose.

1.

2. The usual function of a detention facilities is to provide sufficient storage such that
peak runoff rates are not increased when development occurs. A secondary function may
be to settle pollutants such as sediment from the stormwater before discharge to the
natural drainageway.

All Detention/Retention basins shall follow design guidelines outlined in the latest

Item 6.

95



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.690_Stormwater_Detention_Design

1.

Residential subdivisions. Unless otherwise approved by the City, through review of

stormwater calculations and criteria referenced herein, detention shall be required in
all major residential subdivisions. Upon request by a developer, the City may consider
alternatives to detention in cases where it can be proven that the absence of detention
will not adversely affect downstream property owners. Each request will be evaluated
on a case-by-case basis and an alternative to detention may be established for the
purposes of regional improvements within the watershed or abroad in the City.
Justified exceptions. The City may consider, upon request, a waiver of detention for
sites, in which the alteration of the site is inconsequential and will not substantially
increase the runoff. A justified exception will be granted for sites based on the following
criteria.

a. Existing sites in which the addition of impervious surface will not increase more

than five thousand (5,000) square feet.

Item 6.

96




F.

G.

b. Sites in which existing gravel, chat or stone parking lots or driveways are paved
with asphalt cement or concrete surfaces shall be considered 50% of the sf of
an _increase in impervious surface. This shall not apply to parking areas or
circulation routes in which vegetation has consumed the site and altered the
ability to shed or absorb runoff. The BUILDS Department shall exercise strict
discretion with respect to approving exceptions based on these criteria.

c. Sites in which a change in use has occurred, that does not increase the
impervious area of the site.

d. Subdivisions meeting the definition of a minor subdivision or the development
of individual single-family-residential homes on individual lots in existing
subdivisions.

Procedure. A request for approval of an alternative to detention must begin with the applicant
providing the BUILDS Department with stormwater calculations for the increased runoff from
the development. In addition to providing calculations, the applicant must submit a request for
alternative design based on the criteria established above. The-BUILDS Department will review
the and/or other departments impacted by the request. If the City determines the request is
justified the City will notify the applicant or his representative of the approval and the necessary
improvements required in lieu of installing detention.

Innovation in design.

1. It is the desire of the City that detention facilities be designed and constructed in a
manner to enhance aesthetic and environmental qualities of the City as much as
possible.

2. The City of Republic therefore encourages designs, which utilize and enhance natural
settings and minimize disturbance and destruction of wooded areas, natural channels
and wetlands.

Interpretation.

1. Interpretations of the detention policy will be made by the BUILDS Administrator or

their designee in writing.

3. Alternativesto-detention.

Item 6.

97




Item 6.

98




H. D. Design Criteria.

1.

General.

a.

Detention facilities shall discharge into a drainage easement or public right-of-
way.

One (1) foot of freeboard shall be provided between the maximum water surface
elevation (maximum stage for a one percent (1%) annual probability event) and
the minimum top of berm or wall elevation.

Embankment slopes steeper than three (3) horizontal to one (1) vertical (3H:1V)
are not permitted.

In certain instances, such as when the existing development conditions runoff
from a watershed would exceed the capacity of the existing downstream
facilities, retention basins (i.e., no outlet or with a release rate at the capacity of
the downstream facilities) for the storm runoff may be required by the City.

Dry detention basins shall maintain a minimum bottom slope of two (2) feet per
hundred (100) feet (two percent (2%)).

Trickle channels shall have a minimum slope of one-half (0.5) foot per hundred
(100) feet (one-half percent (0.5%)).

Item 6.

99




Item 6.

g. The maximum allowable depth of ponding for parking lot detention is twelve (12)
inches.

h. Parking lot detention may not inundate more than ten percent (10%) of the total
parking area.

i. All parking lot detention areas shall have a minimum of two (2) signs posted
identifying the detention pond area. The signs shall have a minimum area of one
and one-half (1.5) square feet and contain the following message:

WARNING: This area is a storm-water detention pond and is subject to periodic
flooding to a depth of twelve (12) inches.

j. The sign shall be reflective and have a minimum height of forty-eight (48) inches
from the bottom of the sign to the parking space finished grade. Any suitable
materials and geometry of the sign are permissible, subject to approval by the
City.

2. Detailed analysis.

100




Item 6.

b valuesshal-be-determined-from-the-follovingtakle:

" Value Surface-Conditions

101




Item 6.

gﬁgﬂﬂta‘:‘ﬁii

102




Item 6.

410.700 Sinkholes And Karst Features

A. General. Refer to Section 9 of Republic Stormwater Design Manual for design criteria involving

sinkholes and karst features on a site.

1 ha v of Ranubh o o

103



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.700_Sinkholes_And_Karst_Features

Item 6.

B. Policy. In keeping with the intent of the City Development Regulations the following policy is set
forth for development in areas containing sinkholes:

1. Development in sinkhole areas will be based upon the following axioms:

a. Avoidance.
b. Minimization.
c. Mitigation.

2. Construction in sinkholes shall be avoided. Exceptions will be made only in situations
where it can be conclusively demonstrated that there are no practical alternatives to such
construction.

3. These situations are mostly likely to arise where:

a. Anunderground cavity has caused a collapsed sinkhole to form, after subdivision
approval or building construction.

b. A sinkhole has been altered or filled either unknowingly or prior to passage of
these regulations.

c. Maintenance and operation is required for existing roads and utilities.

d. Location of existing streets or utilities would render access or utility service to a
property impractical or cost prohibitive.

4. In these types of cases, measures, which will have minimal impact on the sinkhole or
receiving water, may be proposed. Plans for minimal alteration can be approved provided
it is conclusively demonstrated that the proposed plan is the minimum practical
alternative.

5. In these cases potential impacts of construction on the sinkhole and receiving waters
must be studied and assessed and recommendations made for mitigation of potential
impacts upon surface flooding and groundwater quality before the plans can be
approved. The degree and sophistication of study required will increase in proportion to
the potential impacts. A remediation plan will need to be submitted for review by the
City. The remediation plan will need to be stamped by a Qualified Professional
Geotechnical Engineer licensed in the state of Missouri.

C. Definitions. As used in this Section, the following terms shall have these prescribed meanings:

ALTERED SINKHOLE
A sinkhole that has been filled, excavated or otherwise disturbed.

COLLAPSED SINKHOLE
A subsidence or cave-in of the ground surface caused when soil overburden can no longer be
supported by underlying strata due to the presence of subsurface solution cavities.

HEAVY EQUIPMENT
Motorized equipment having a gross weight of more than six (6) tons.

LIGHT EQUIPMENT
Motorized equipment weighing six (6) tons or less.

QUALIFIED GEOLOGIST
A person who has met or exceeded the minimum geological educational requirement and who
can interpret and apply geologic data principles and concepts and who can conduct field or

104




Item 6.

laboratory geologic investigations (per RSMo.) and who by reason of experience and education,
has an understanding of local karst geology.

QUALIFIED PROFESSIONAL GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER

A person registered to practice engineering according to the laws of the State of Missouri and
who by reason of technical education and experience has a background in the fundamentals of
storm drainage and karst geology.

SINKHOLE
Any depression in the surface of the ground, with or without collapse of adjacent rock that
provides a means through which surface water can come into contact with subsurface water.

Sinkhole depressions may be gradual or abrupt; they may or may not have a well defined eye.
While most sinkholes can be defined as the area within a "closed contour", some sinkholes such
as those located on the sides of hills may not.

All sinkholes provide discreet points of recharge to groundwater.

SINKHOLE CLUSTER AREA
An area containing two (2) or more sinkholes located in close proximity, generally
interconnected by groundwater conduits.

SINKHOLE EYE
Generally, a visible opening, cavity or cave in the bottom of a sinkhole, sometimes referred to as
a swallow hole.

SINKHOLE FLOODING AREA
The area inundated by runoff from a storm with an annual exceedance probability of one
percent (1%) and a duration of twenty-four (24) hours.

SINKHOLE RIM
The perimeter of the sinkhole depression. The sinkhole rim will generally vary in elevation.

SINKHOLE WATERSHED
The ground surface area that provides drainage to the sinkhole. This area extends beyond the
sinkhole depression and generally crosses property boundaries.

TERMINAL SINKHOLE
The lowest sinkhole in a sinkhole cluster to which any surface water overflowing from other
sinkholes in the cluster will flow.

UNALTERED SINKHOLE
A sinkhole that has never been altered or disturbed.

D. Permits Required.
1. Grading permit. A grading permit must be obtained prior to any alteration of sinkholes
associated with new subdivision construction in accordance with the City's Subdivision

105




Regulations. Procedures and requirements for grading permits are set forth in Section
410.710.

2. Other permits. Other permits from State or Federal agencies may be required, as outlined
in Section 410.650 of these Design Criteria, depending upon the size and nature of the
proposed activity.

E. General Plan Requirements. General requirements for grading and drainage plans are set forth in
the latest version of Republic Stormwater Desigh Manual Seetions-410.670,-410.680 and Section
410.710 of these Design Criteria.

Item 6.

106




Item 6.

107




Item 6.

108




Item 6.

109




Item 6.

110




Item 6.

1. 3. Setbacks and use restrictions.
a. No new construction of any of the following shall be permitted within thirty (30)
feet of the sinkhole rim:
(1). Residential, commercial or industrial structures.
(2). Swimming pools.
(3). Streets, highways or parking lots.
(4). Storage yards for materials, vehicles and equipment.
(5). Sanitary sewer lines.

b. Use of pesticides and fertilizers within thirty (30) feet of the sinkhole rim is
prohibited.

c. Use of heavy construction equipment in unaltered sinkholes is prohibited.

d. Construction of underground utilities is prohibited within the sinkhole rim.

e. Recreational facilities such as hiking, jogging and bicycling trails, playgrounds,
exercise courses and grass playing fields are permitted within the sinkhole area
provided they are not located within the eye of the sinkhole.

f.  Golf courses are permitted subject to approval of a Management Plan for use of
pesticides and fertilizers.

g. Clearing and pruning of trees and undergrowth and limited grubbing of roots is
permitted.

h. Landscaping and minor gardening is permitted outside of the sinkhole eye
provided erosion and sediment discharge is limited through use of minimum
tillage and mulches.

i. Construction of light incidental landscaping and recreational structures such as
gazebos, playground equipment, etc. is permitted except in the sinkhole eye.

2. 4. Collapsed sinkholes.

a. Collapsed sinkholes may be stabilized and filled using approved techniques. A

Grading Permit must be issued prior to performing any construction.

111




b. The probable cause of the collapse and potential adverse impacts of filling the
collapse shall be investigated and information submitted with the Grading Permit
application.

3. 5: Altered sinkholes.

a. Filling or altering of sinkholes without a Grading Permit constitutes a violation of
these regulations. In such cases corrective measures must be proposed within the
time period specified in the Zoning Regulations for enforcement of such
violations. No corrective or remedial measures shall be undertaken until the
proposed remediation plan has been reviewed by the City and a Grading Permit
issued.

b. No Building Permits will be issued or zoning or subdivision approvals granted,
until the remedial measures specified in the Grading Permit have been completed
and approved.

410.710 Grading, Sediment And Erosion Control

Item 6.

112



https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=410.710_Grading,_Sediment_And_Erosion_Control

A. & Grading Permits.
1. Permit requirements. Grading permits are required for all construction sites with the
following exceptions:

a.

d.

Grading for single-family or duplex residences constructed in subdivisions where
approved sediment and erosion controls have been constructed.
Emergency construction required repairing or replacing roads, utilities or other
items affecting the general safety and well being of the public.
For emergency construction sites which would otherwise be required to obtain a
permit and for which remedial construction will take more than fourteen (14)
calendar days, application for the permit must be made within three (3) calendar
days from the start of construction.
The following activities, provided that they are not located within twenty-five (25)
feet of a spring, sinkhole, wetland or watercourse:

(1) Gardening or landscaping normally associated with single-family

residences that cover less than one-half (1/2) acre.

(2) Grading and repair of existing roads or driveways.

(3) Cleaning and routine maintenance of roadside ditches or utilities.

(4) Utility construction where the actual trench width is two (2) feet or less.

2. Permit procedure. The following items must be received prior to issuance of a Grading

Permit:
a.

An approved grading, sediment and erosion control plan. The submittal and
approval procedure is as follows for subdivisions, commercial and other sites.
(1) The sediment and erosion control plan shall be submitted for review
along with the plans for the proposed improvements.
(2) Grading permits for commercial, multi-family or major subdivisions will
be issued by the City Planner after the project plans have been approved.

3. Planrequirements. Plans must be prepared by and bear the seal of; an engineer registered
to practice in the State of Missouri. Plan requirements are set forth in SectienChapter
410410-660 and in this Section. Plans will not be required in the following cases:

a.
b.

Grading associated solely with a single-family residence.

Grading or filling of less than one (1) acre if located outside of the allowable
building areas and not located within twenty-five (25) feet of spring, sinkhole,
wetland or watercourse. In these instances a grading permit can be issued,
providing an inspection of the site by a representative of the City does not reveal
conditions that would warrant preparation of a detailed plan.

B. D. Other Permits.

1. NPDES storm-water permit. Effective-October1,1992,construction sites where the area
to be disturbed is five (1)}{5} acres or more must apply for a storm-water discharge permit
from the Missouri Department of Natural Resources. Permit requirements are set forth
in 10 CSR 20-6.200 of the Missouri Clean Water Laws.

Item 6.

113




Item 6.

2. "404" permit. Grading activities in streams or wetlands may require a Department of the
Army Permit under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.
C. E Design Standards And Criteria. Refer to Republic Stormwater Design for Design Standards and
Criteria relating to Grading, Sediment and Erosion Control.
L Gredises

114




Item 6.

115



https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160431_RE3414-410h%20Drawing%2050.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160443_RE3414-410g%20Drawing%2040.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160453_RE3414-410k%20Drawing%2080.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160462_RE3414-410f%20Drawing%2030.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160476_RE3414-410q%20Drawing%20140.pdf

Item 6.

116



https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160486_RE3414-410d%20Drawing%2010.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160507_RE3414-410d%20Drawing%2010.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160517_RE3414-410d%20Drawing%2010.pdf

Item 6.

117



https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160537_RE3414-410f%20Drawing%2030.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160548_RE3414-410j%20Drawing%2070.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160565_RE3414-410l%20Drawing%2090.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160575_RE3414-410l%20Drawing%2090.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160588_RE3414-410o%20Drawing%20120.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160588_RE3414-410o%20Drawing%20120.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160599_RE3414-410o%20Drawing%20120.pdf

Item 6.

118



https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160608_RE3414-410o%20Drawing%20120.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160618_RE3414-410o%20Drawing%20120.pdf
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/municipalcodeonline.com-new/republic/ADC/files/ordinance/1620160630_RE3414-410p%20Drawing%20130.pdf

	Top
	Item 1.	Draft Minutes: 8/14/23
	Minutes 081423

	Item 2.	SU 23-002 Republic Animal Hospital
	SU 23-002 PZ Report
	SU 23-002 Vicinity
	SU 23-002 Zoning
	SU 23-002 Republic Animal Hosptial Narrative

	Item 3.	REZN 23-006 1230 S State Hwy MM
	REZN 23-006 PZ Staff Report
	REZN 23-006 Vicinity Map
	REZN 23-006 ZoningMap

	Item 4.	PDD 23-003 Boyce Mixed-Use
	PDD 23-003 PZ Staff Report
	PDD 23-003 Vicinity
	PDD 23-003 Zoning
	Development Plan

	Item 5.	PDD 23-004 6-Point Junction
	PDD 23-004 PZ Staff Report
	PDD 23-004 Vicinity
	PDD 23-004 Zoning
	PDD Report_Republic Warehouse
	2023.08.21 REPUBLIC WAREHOUSE DEVELOPMENT

	Item 6.	ORD 23-007 Subdivision Ordinance Amendment
	ORD 23-007 PZ Staff Report
	23-ORD-XX - Amending Chapter 410-Subdivision Regulations_Working Copy_no highlights1

	Bottom

